
“I pledge to build a stronger and more prosperous community by advocating for civil 
engagement, respecting others and their viewpoints, and finding solutions for the betterment of 
my city.” 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

229 MAIN STREET, CONWAY, SC 29526 
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 19, 2024 - 4:00 PM 

PLEASE SILENCE ALL ELECTRONIC DEVICES 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Mike Roberts, St. Anne’s Episcopal Church

III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

IV. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Final Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-02-19 to annex approximately 0.51 acres located at
3310 Betty Street (PIN 369-12-02-0034), and rezone from the Horry County Residential 
(SF 20), no mobile homes allowed, district to the City of Conway Low/Medium 
Residential (R-1) district. 

B. Approval of February 5, 2024 Council Meeting Minutes 

V. PUBLIC INPUT 

VI. SPECIAL PRESENTATION

A. Presentation of Employee of the Month for February 2024 – Public Works

B. Conway Downtown Alive Annual Visitor Center Update (Howard)

C. Presentation of Keep Conway Beautiful Award (Mileur)

VII. PUBLIC HEARING AND FIRST READING

A. First Reading and Public Hearing of Ordinance #ZA2024-03-18 (A) to amend the Future
Land Use Map (2019-2029) (FLUM) of the City of Conway Comprehensive Plan, relative 
to property located near the corner of Highway 501 (Church St) and Mill Pond Road (PIN 
338-10-01-0015), consisting of a total of 8.96 acres, from the Conservation Preservation 
(CP) district to the Highway Commercial (HC) and Conservation Preservation (CP) 
district. (Hucks)  

B. First Reading and Public Hearing of Ordinance #ZA2024-03-18 (B) to amend the Future 
Land Use Map (2019-2029) (FLUM) of the City of Conway Comprehensive Plan, relative 

1



“I pledge to build a stronger and more prosperous community by advocating for civil 
engagement, respecting others and their viewpoints, and finding solutions for the betterment of 
my city.” 
 
 

to property located at 1904 Rose Hill Drive (PIN 338-16-03-0005), consisting of 0.43 
acres, from the Medium-Density Residential (R-2) district to the Highway Commercial 
(HC) district. (Hucks) 

 
VIII. FIRST READING 

                           
A. First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-03-18 (C) to rezone approximately 0.43 acres of 

property located at 1904 Rose Hill Drive (PIN 338-16-03-0005) from the Medium-Density 
(R-2) district to the Highway Commercial (HC) district. (Hucks) 
 

B. First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-03-18 (D) to annex approximately 11.53 acres of 
property located at/near the intersection of Gardner Lacy Road and Highway 501 (PIN 
399-00-00-0403), and rezone from the Horry County Highway Commercial (HC) district 
to the City of Conway Highway Commercial (HC) district. (Hucks)  
 

C. First reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-03-18 (E) to annex approximately 0.7 acres of 
property located at 3648 Old Alston Ave (PIN 369-10-02-0004), and rezone from the Horry 
County Commercial Forest Agriculture (CFA) district to the City of Conway 
Low/Medium-Density Residential (R-1) district. (Hucks) 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             
IX. CONSIDERATION 
 

A. Consideration of approval of a name for a new residential development, located on 
Medlen Parkway – “Kings Court.” (Hucks) 
 

B. Consideration of Authorization of Application for the 2024 Assistance to Firefighters 
Grant (Hendrick) 
 

C. Consideration of a Special Event – Running with my Peeps – April 13, 2024 (Rogers) 
 

D. Consideration of a Special Event – First Baptist Church Easter Jam – March 24, 2024 
(Rogers) 

 
X. CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT  
 
XI. COUNCIL INPUT 
 

XII. ADJOURNMENT   
 

Any citizen of the municipality may make an appearance before City Council concerning any municipal matter with 
the exception of personnel matters.  Persons desiring to speak must notify the City Clerk prior to the beginning of 
the meeting.  However, if you are speaking regarding a public hearing item, then you would do so during that time 
on the agenda.  Please address Council from the podium stating your name, address, and the subject you would like 
to discuss.   
 
The public may also access the meeting at https://www.conwaysc.gov/ under the “Latest Events” tab on the home 
page.  If you are unable to attend and would like to voice your concerns or comments regarding a request, please call 
the City Hall at 843-248-1760 or email ashelley@conwaysc.gov to be received prior to 12:00 noon on February 19, 
2024.  To assure proper recording of public comments left on the City’s voicemail, callers are urged to clearly 
pronounce their names and addresses, preferably providing spelling for both. 

2

https://www.conwaysc.gov/
mailto:ashelley@conwaysc.gov


      DATE: FEBRUARY 19, 2024 
      ITEM: IV. A. 
 

ISSUE: 
Final Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-02-19 to annex approximately 0.51 acres located at 3310 Betty 
Street (PIN 369-12-02-0034), and rezone from the Horry County Residential (SF 20), no mobile homes 
allowed, district to the City of Conway Low/Medium-Density Residential (R-1) district. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The annexation application was submitted by Annaliese Edwards on January 19, 2024, as a requirement 
to connect to water and/or sewer utilities. According to Horry County Land Records, the property was 
transferred into the applicant’s names on January 2024. The property is within the Sam Johnson 
subdivision, located between Donald Street and Johnson Street. There is an existing single-family 
residence on the property. Restrictive covenants were recorded for this property at the time annexation 
was applied for, on April 27, 1987.  
 

Council has annexed approximately eight properties within the Sam Johnson Subdivision since 2019. 
Four additional properties located off of Cates Bay Highway, directly behind the subject property also 
have been annexed in recent years. 
 
CITY OF CONWAY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 
The Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan identifies this parcel as Low/Medium Density 
Residential (R-1). 
 
The intent of the R-1 District is to provide for the preservation and expansion of areas for low to medium 
density, detached single-family residential development in the City of Conway. The district shall present 
a relatively spacious character, promote quiet, livable neighborhoods, and prohibit uses that are 
incompatible with the residential nature of the surrounding area. 
 
CITY COUNCIL: 
City Council approved First Reading of the ordinance at their February 2nd meeting. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
Approve Final Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-02-19.  

 

 

 

 

 

3



ORDINANCE # ZA2024-02-19 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ANNEX APPROXIMATELY 0.51 ACRES OF PROPERTY 
LOCATED    AT 3310 BETTY STREET (PIN 369-12-02-0034), AND REQUEST TO 

REZONE FROM THE HORRY COUNTY RESIDENTIAL (SF20), NO MOBILE HOMES 
ALLOWED, DISTRICT TO THE CITY OF CONWAY LOW/MEDIUM-DENSITY 

RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (R-1) DISTRICT. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CONWAY:  

 
SECTION 1. FINDINGS: 
A petition has been submitted to the City Council of the City of Conway to annex approximately 0.51 
acres of property described herein and represented on a map. The City Council of the City of Conway 
has determined that the annexation of this area into the City of Conway will be to the advantage of the 
municipality. 

 
The area proposed for annexation is adjacent to the present City limits. The petition for annexation of 
land and declared zoning is hereby accepted by the governing body of the municipality of Conway, 
and made a part of the City of Conway, South Carolina, to wit: 

 
ALL AND SINGULAR, those certain parcels, lots, or tracts of land in Conway Township, County 
and    State aforesaid, containing approximately 0.51 acres of property located at 3310 Betty Street (PIN 
369-12-02-0034), and request to rezone from the Horry County Residential (SF20), no mobile homes 
allowed, district to the City of Conway Low/Medium Residential (R-1) district. 

 
This annexation includes all waterways, roads, and rights-of-way adjacent to the property. 
For a more specific description of said property, see attached map. 

 
SECTION 2. APPLICATION OF ZONING ORDINANCE: 
The property is admitted as City of Conway Low/Medium Density Residential District (R-1) 
area       under the zoning laws of the municipality. 

 
SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE: 
The annexation is effective as of the date of the final reading of this Ordinance. 

 
AND BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that such changes shall be made on the Official Zoning Map. 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent 
of such inconsistency. 

4



RATIFIED BY CITY COUNCIL, duly assembled, this day of 
  , 2024. 

 
 
 
Barbara Jo Blain-Bellamy, Mayor Larry A. White, Mayor Pro Tem 

 
 
 
Amanda Butler, Council Member William M. Goldfinch IV, Council Member 

 
 
 
Julie Ann Hardwick, Council Member Beth Helms, Council Member 
 
 

              
Justin D. Jordan, Council Member ATTEST: Alicia Shelley, City Clerk 

 
 
 
First Reading:     

 

Final Reading:    
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5



DONALD ST

BETTY ST

CATES BAY HWY

RAINER ST

Date: 1/19/2024  Time: 2:01:16 PM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R1 ANNEXATIONS\2024\3301 Betty Street\GIS\ZOOMED IN AERIAL MAP FOR 3310 BETTY ST.mxd

PIN #: 369-12-02-0034
TMS #: 136-11-04-007

3310 BETTY ST
(P24-0017)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

Legend
PARCELS

PIN #: 369-12-02-0034

6



LIZ LN

CATES BAY HWY

JOHNSON ST

PAUL ST

DO
NA

LD
 ST

WEB LN

HOLLY LOOP

HE
MI

NG
WA

Y C
HA

PE
L R

D

NINTH AVE

RAINER ST

BETTY ST

ALC
AZA

R CT

FAULK CIR

JANETTE ST

SANTEE DR

TRAILS RD

CY
MM

ER
 CT

DOVER DR

DUNRAVEN CT

SOUTH OAKS DRIVE
WOODBURY COURT

TERRACE LN

DONALD ST

JOHNSON ST

Date: 1/19/2024  Time: 2:00:34 PM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R1 ANNEXATIONS\2024\3301 Betty Street\GIS\ZOOMED OUT AERIAL MAP FOR 3310 BETTY ST.mxd

PIN #: 369-12-02-0034
TMS #: 136-11-04-007

3310 BETTY ST
(P24-0017)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

Legend
PARCELS

PIN #: 369-12-02-0034

7



SF 20

PUD

CFA

CFA

CFA

SF 20

CFA
SF 20

SF 20

SF 10

SF 20

SF 20

CFA

SF 20

SF 20

SF 20

SF 20

SF 20

SF 20

CFA

CFA

LIZ LN

CATES BAY HWY

JOHNSON ST

PAUL ST

DO
NA

LD
 ST

WEB LN

HOLLY LOOP

HE
MI

NG
WA

Y C
HA

PE
L R

D

NINTH AVE

RAINER ST

BETTY ST

ALC
AZA

R CT

FAULK CIR

JANETTE ST

SANTEE DR

TRAILS RD

CY
MM

ER
 CT

DOVER DR

DUNRAVEN CT

SOUTH OAKS DRIVE
WOODBURY COURT

TERRACE LN

DONALD ST

JOHNSON ST

Date: 1/19/2024  Time: 1:53:29 PM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R1 ANNEXATIONS\2024\3301 Betty Street\GIS\ZONING MAP FOR 3301 BETTY ST.mxd

PIN #: 369-12-02-0034
TMS #: 136-11-04-007

3310 BETTY ST
(P24-0017)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

CONWAY ZONING
RA

RR

R

R1

R2

R3

R4

P

IN

NC

HC

CC

CBD

LI

HI

FA

CP

WRD1

WRD2

PD

MU

MM

IC

COUNTY ZONING

PARCELS

XX

PIN #: 369-12-02-0034

8



LIZ LN

CATES BAY HWY

JOHNSON ST

PAUL ST

DO
NA

LD
 ST

WEB LN

HOLLY LOOP

HE
MI

NG
WA

Y C
HA

PE
L R

D

NINTH AVE

RAINER ST

BETTY ST

ALC
AZA

R CT

FAULK CIR

JANETTE ST

SANTEE DR

TRAILS RD

CY
MM

ER
 CT

DOVER DR

DUNRAVEN CT

SOUTH OAKS DRIVE
WOODBURY COURT

TERRACE LN

DONALD ST

JOHNSON ST

Date: 1/19/2024  Time: 1:54:44 PM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R1 ANNEXATIONS\2024\3301 Betty Street\GIS\FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR 3310 BETTY ST.mxd

PIN #: 369-12-02-0034
TMS #: 136-11-04-007

3310 BETTY ST
(P24-0017)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PIN #: 369-12-02-0034

FUTURE LAND USE
CONSERVATION PRESERVATION

DOWNTOWN HISTORIC DISTRICT

FOREST AGRICULTURE

HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL

INDUSTRIAL

INSTITUTIONAL

LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MIXED USE

NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL

PLANNED DISTRICT

PROFESSIONAL

RECREATIONAL

RURAL RESIDENTIAL

UTILITY

PARCELS

9



LIZ LN

CATES BAY HWY

JOHNSON ST

PAUL ST

DO
NA

LD
 ST

WEB LN

HOLLY LOOP

HE
MI

NG
WA

Y C
HA

PE
L R

D

NINTH AVE

RAINER ST

BETTY ST

ALC
AZA

R CT

FAULK CIR

JANETTE ST

SANTEE DR

TRAILS RD

CY
MM

ER
 CT

DOVER DR

DUNRAVEN CT

SOUTH OAKS DRIVE
WOODBURY COURT

TERRACE LN

DONALD ST

JOHNSON ST

Date: 1/19/2024  Time: 2:04:54 PM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R1 ANNEXATIONS\2024\3301 Betty Street\GIS\FLOOD ZONE MAP FOR 3310 BETTY ST.mxd

PIN #: 369-12-02-0034
TMS #: 136-11-04-007

3310 BETTY ST
(P24-0017)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PIN #: 369-12-02-0034

REVISED 2019 FLOOD ZONES
0.2 PCT ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD HAZARD

A

AE

VE

PARCELS

10



11



12



13



14



15



February 5, 2024 
 

  CITY OF CONWAY 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

CONWAY CITY HALL 
229 MAIN STREET, CONWAY 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 2024 - 4:00 P.M. 
   

PRESENT:  Mayor Barbara Jo Blain-Bellamy, Mayor Pro Tem Larry White, Amanda Butler, 
William Goldfinch, Julie Hardwick, Beth Helms, Justin Jordan.   
 
STAFF:  Adam Emrick, City Administrator; Mary Catherine Hyman, Deputy City Administrator; 
John Rogers, Deputy City Administrator; June Wood, Public Information Officer; Jeff Leveille, 
Technology Services Director; Allison Williams, Finance Director; Timmy Williams, Hospitality 
& Beautification Director; Reggie Jenerette, Solid Waste Director; Lynn Smith, Human Resource 
Director; Rock Rabon, Fleet Maintenance Director; Jessica Hucks, Planning and Development 
Director; Le Hendrick, Fire Chief; Ashley Smith, Recreation Director; James Friday, Public 
Utilities Director; Dale Long, Police Chief; Ted Dudley, Public Utilities Deputy Director; Robert 
Cooper, Construction Services Director; Brandon Harrelson, Public Works Director; Kym 
Wilkerson, Deputy Planning and Development Director; Jasmin Waites Parker, City Attorney; and 
Alicia Shelley, City Clerk.  
 
OTHERS:  Mark LaScola, Hampton Shuping Jr, Hillary Howard, and Amber Shubrick.  There 
were approximately 40 others in attendance.   
    
CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Blain-Bellamy called the meeting to order.  Rev. Robert Bannon, 
Kingston Presbyterian gave the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
The requirements for posting notice of this meeting under South Carolina’s Freedom of 
Information Act (FOIA) were met. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  Motion:  White made a motion, seconded by Butler, to approve 
the February 5, 2024 meeting agenda.   Vote:  Unanimous. Motion carried.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 

A. Final Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-02-05 (C), to annex approximately 8.96 acres 
of property located at/near the intersection of Mill Pond Road and Highway 501 
(Church Street) (PIN 338-10-01-0015), and rezone from the Horry County Highway 
Commercial (HC) to the City of Conway Highway Commercial (HC) and 
Conservation Preservation (CP) zoning districts.  

 
B. Final Reading of Ordinance #2024-02-05 (D) amending the Business License 

Ordinance to update the Class Schedule in accordance with the Business License 
Standardization Act (2020 ACT No. 176).  

 
C. Special Event – Groovin’ on the Green – May 3, 10, 17, 24, and 31, 2024 

 
D. Special Event – Gullah Geechee Community Day – February 24, 2024 

 

16



February 5, 2024 
 

E. Approval of Memorandum of Understanding with Georgetown County Sheriff’s 
Office 

 
F. Declare that the State of Emergency relative to the January 2024 severe weather event 

has ended 
 

G. Approval of January 16, 2024 Council Meeting Minutes 
 
APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA:  Motion:  Goldfinch made a motion, seconded by 
Jordan to approve the February 5, 2024 consent agenda.  Vote:  Unanimous.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC INPUT: 
 

- Mark LaScola spoke to Council regarding his water bill charges. 
 

- Cheryl Moore Adamson invited everyone to attend the Horry County Museum event on 
February 10 titled “A Visual Retrospective of the Whittemore Racepath Community.” 
 

- Hampton Shuping thanked the city for sidewalk maintenance and spoke regarding the 
possibility of a recreation area with a large open space. 

 
There was no further public input.  Motion:  Goldfinch made a motion, seconded by White, to 
close public input.  Vote:  Unanimous.  Motion carried. 
 
SPECIAL PRESENTATION: 
 

A. Presentation of Longevity Awards – January 2024 – 5 Years:  David Fassbender, 
Police – Emrick and Hardwick presented the longevity awards. 
 

B. Report on Activities of the Mayor’s Youth Advisory Council – Hernandez, Youth 
Mayor updated Council on the activities that the Youth Advisory Council has been 
working on.  Hernandez thanked Council and Deputy Administrator Rogers for their 
support of the Youth Council.  Hernandez stated that the Busking Ordinance change has 
allowed more performing arts from Conway High School students.  Hernandez said that 
the Youth Council would like to see a mural depicting the bridge, river, or a boat.   
 
Goldfinch told the students that he appreciated them stepping up and serving.   
 

C. Discussion of a request to rezone approximately 0.43 acres of property located at 
1904 Rose Hill Rd (PIN 338-16-03-0005) from the Medium-Density (R-2) district to 
the Highway Commercial (HC) district, and to amend the City’s Future Land Use 
Map of the Comprehensive Plan.  Hucks stated that the applicants are requesting to 
rezone the property at 1904 Rose Hill Drive from the medium-density residential (R-2) 
district to the Highway Commercial (HC) district. Last year, the adjacent parcels with 
frontage on Grainger Road and Highway 378 were rezoned to Highway Commercial as 
well. The applicant’s agents have stated that the purpose for seeking the rezoning is to 
develop a “Parkers Kitchen” on the site, and would combine this parcel with the other 
parcels that were already rezoned to HC.  The future land use map of the city’s 

17



February 5, 2024 
 

comprehensive plan identifies the property as medium-density residential, and therefore a 
future land use map amendment is also being processed, which has been scheduled for a 
public hearing at the February 19 Council meeting, the same time in which first reading 
of the rezoning request will be considered.  Planning Commission held the public hearing 
on the rezoning request and the first of the 2 required public hearings on the future land 
use map amendment at their February 2 meeting, and recommended approval of the 
requests. Hucks said again, both the rezoning request and future land use map 
amendment will be on the next council agenda for first reading.  
 

D. Discussion of a request to annex approximately 11.53 acres of property located at 
the corner of Gardner Lacy Rd and the corner of Hwy 501 & Conbraco Circle (PIN 
399-00-00-0403), and rezone from the Horry County Highway Commercial (HC) 
district to the City of Conway Highway Commercial (HC) district.  Hucks stated that 
the applicant has submitted an annexation and rezoning request for the subject property, 
currently zoned Horry County Highway Commercial. With the exception of signage for 
the MB National Golf Course, and possibly an old entrance way to the golf course, which 
is likely still in use as a cut through to Highway 501, the property is vacant. Across 
Gardner Lacy Road, there is property currently in the city limits, zoned Light Industrial 
(LI).  The parcel abuts property in the county’s jurisdiction, zoned Horry County Limited 
Industrial and Horry County Highway Commercial. Adjacent uses are institutional or 
industrial-related uses, with the close proximity of Carolina Forest High School and the 
old Conbraco plant, which is now Aalberts Integrated Piping Systems, as well as several 
industrial or manufacturing uses along Gardner Lacy Road. Along Highway 501 there is 
an existing gas station and another parcel with a structure that once contained a vape shop 
that is adjacent to the subject property.  The city’s future land use map identifies the 
parcel as Highway Commercial as well. Planning Commission held the required public 
hearing at the February 1 meeting and recommended approval of the requested zoning of 
HC upon annexation. This request is scheduled for first reading at the February 19 
Council meeting. 
 

FIRST READING: 
 
First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-02-19 to annex approximately 0.51 acres located at 
3310 Betty Street (PIN 369-12-02-0034), and rezone from the Horry County Residential (SF 
20), no mobile homes allowed, District to the City of Conway Low/Medium Residential (R-
1) District.  Hucks stated that this annexation petition was submitted last month as a requirement 
to connect to city utilities. There is an existing single-family structure on the property. 
Restrictive covenants were recorded for the property in 1987.  The city’s future land use map 
identifies the property as low/medium density residential (R-1), and several properties adjacent 
to this one has been annexed over the last few years. Hucks said that staff recommends approval 
of first reading of the request.  
 
White asked if letters had been sent to residents in this area requesting annexation.  Hucks said 
no. 
 
Motion:  White made a motion, seconded by Blain-Bellamy, to approve first reading of 
Ordinance #ZA2024-02-19.  Vote:  Unanimous.  Motion carried. 
 

18



February 5, 2024 
 
CONSIDERATION: 
 

A. Consideration of the non-exclusive Franchise Agreement between the City of Conway 
and Antonio Knight, D.B.A. Peel Scooters, Ordinance #ZA2023-02-20, to end the pilot 
program status.  Hucks stated that in February of 2023, Council approved a franchise 
agreement for Peel Scooters, as a 6-month pilot program. The franchise agreement included 
city properties located at Collins Park, Riverwalk Park, Kingston Park, the Town Green, 
Conway Downtown Alive offices at the corner of 5th and Main, the parking lot across from 
City Hall and the parking lot adjacent to the Riverwalk.  In August of last year, the 
agreement came back to council for consideration, at the end of the first 6-month pilot 
program. At that time, staff had received complaints of the scooters being left in regular 
parking spaces, on public sidewalks, or on other properties that were not included as part 
of the franchise agreement. The applicant stated during the August meeting that the 
scooters were picked up each evening and brought back to the approved locations each 
morning. Council also discussed possible time restrictions on when the scooters could be 
rented. Ultimately, Council voted to extend the pilot program status of the franchise 
agreement for another 6 months, and that 6 months has now expired and is back up for 
consideration to remove the pilot program status.  

 
Hucks stated that the applicant can elaborate on the improvements or adjustments that have 
been made since the pilot program was extended last year, but one thing that staff was 
informed of is that there is now a requirement to send a picture of the scooter being placed 
back in an approved location when the user is done with it or they are subject to a $5 fee.  
 
There was much discussion between Council and Knight regarding the scooters being left 
at unapproved locations, picture of the scooter being placed back in the proper location, 
tampering with scooters, hours of operation, age demographics, and speed of the scooters 
in certain areas.   
 
Motion:  Goldfinch made a motion, seconded by Helms, to end the pilot program status 
and review the franchise agreement as needed in the future.  Vote:  Blain-Bellamy, 
Goldfinch, Hardwick, Helms and White voted yes.  Butler and Jordan voted no.  Motion 
carried with a 5-2 vote. 
 

B. Consideration of Recommendation on Selection of Engineering Firm to Design and 
Develop Water Ground Storage Tank – Dudley stated that updated estimates were 
recently received and due to the cost, staff has requested to defer this consideration to a 
later date.   
 
Motion:  Blain-Bellamy made a motion, seconded by White, to defer this issue to a later 
date.  Vote:  Unanimous.  Motion carried. 
 

C. Consideration of Demolition of Remaining Structure on the Whittemore Elementary 
Site – Hyman said that there is one remaining structure on the Whittemore Elementary 
School site and this was the addition to the original building that was built in 1961.  Hyman 
said that in September 2023, City Council created the Whittemore Task Force.  The 
Whittemore Task Force has met 6 times from October 2023-January 2024, with more 
meetings planned in the coming months.  During that time, they have focused on the stated 

19



February 5, 2024 
 

goals and objectives, discussed future plans for the site and community, and toured the 
existing remaining building.  At the January 24, 2024 meeting, the Task Force 
recommended demolition of the existing remaining building on the site, and requested that 
the bricks be saved for potential re-use if possible.  

Motion:  Blain-Bellamy made a motion to follow the recommendation of the committee 
and authorize staff to move forward with the remaining building being removed from the 
site and the brick saved for potential re-use.  
 
Adamson stated that she did not think that this would come up before the committee 
made their final recommendation for the entire site.  She said that there was also some 
discussion about taking apart the building, like what Alan Todd does, and not just 
demolishing. 
 
Blain-Bellamy said that we are speaking as that was a firm belief, and that was the case.  
If that is not the case, is there anything to be lost by waiting until such time as a firm 
recommendation from that group comes forward.  
 
Helms stated that at the committee meeting she made the motion to tear down the 
building and salvage the bricks, and she thought everyone voted for it.  Helms said that 
she doesn’t have a problem with waiting, but that the committee did vote to tear it down 
and salvage the bricks.  
 
Goldfinch said that the meeting that he watched, it was unanimously voted to remove the 
building. 
 
White seconded the motion Vote: Unanimous.  Motion carried. 
 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT: 
 
Emrick informed Council of the following: 

• First, he started with some very impressive data from a sport you may not expect to provide 
it.  The new disc golf course at Smith Jones Park has been open for less than a year.  During 
that time 429 unique players have played the course and used the on-line app to record their 
scores.  Several players have played dozens of rounds of disc golf with one player recording 
121 rounds.  Players from 27 different states visited the course, logging nearly 8 million 
steps in the process.  29 players played their first ever round of disc golf at Smith Jones.  
As we consider what people who live here and people who are visiting here want us to 
offer as amenities, we need to make sure we consider things like disc golf which provide 
an alternative to traditional team sports.   

• Home Legislative Action Day is tomorrow and Emrick said that he knows that some of 
Council is attending.  For the public, this is an opportunity for our local elected officials to 
visit and speak with our state elected officials in Columbia.  There is also an update from 
the Municipal Association on pending matters at the State Legislature that may affect cities 
and towns. 

• Emrick said that it is one of his favorite times of the year.  The Budget Retreat is 
approaching and staff is working diligently on getting that ready for Council. 

20



February 5, 2024 
 

• Our Valentine’s Day décor has been very popular.  If you haven’t been around to get your 
pictures or your family pictures taken, don’t miss the opportunity.  The items will be out 
until the 26th of February.  After February, staff will start rolling out spring flowers and 
landscaping, so no more big holiday stuff until the flags go out for Memorial Day and 4th 
of July.   

• Emrick said that there are two more Movie nights at the Terrace for Valentine’s Day.  This 
Friday is 10 Things I Hate About You and on Valentine’s Day, come enjoy Valentine’s 
Day, the movie. 

• The Recreation Department just held their annual Father Daughter Dance and sold out in 
record time this year.  They sold 500 tickets and made some amazing memories for some 
dads and their girls. 

• The Recreation Department also rolled out a new program today, offering music lessons to 
children up to four nights per week in string, woodwinds and piano.   

• There is no workshop this evening but we do have a couple of Executive Session items. 
 
COUNCIL INPUT:  
 
Helms stated that on Saturday there was the Chocolate Walk, a softball tournament at the Rec, and 
the Father Daughter Dance.  Helms thanked Ashley and his crew, and said that it was a great day. 
 
Goldfinch said that he didn’t have anything until Mr. Shuping talked about open space, and said 
that aside from Conway, two of his favorite cities are New York City and Boston.  Goldfinch said 
that both of those cities have big open spaces where you see people sitting out there, throwing the 
frisbee, having lunch, and there is no play equipment, it is just an open space.  Goldfinch said that 
Shuping has him thinking and wants to figure something out. 
 
Jordan echoed Helms and said that Saturday night was a hit, and thanked Ashley and his crew on 
a job well done.  Jordan said this is his 11th year at the Father Daughter Dance. 
 
Hardwick said that she was glad to have the Mayor’s Youth Council from Conway High School 
at the meeting today.  Hardwick said that she is excited at what the city has going on with so many 
wonderful things happening.  Hardwick said for the first time she is going to the Hometown 
Legislative Day in Columbia.   
 
Blain-Bellamy mentioned the Father Daughter Dance saying that she has gone for the last several 
years and just when you know what to expect, Janic, Mikel and Jr. take it up to a new level.  Blain-
Bellamy also gave credit to the leadership of Smith for the ones that are doing it. Blain-Bellamy 
said kudos as it is a magnificent opportunity for Dads and Daughters to go out and make those 
memories.  Blain-Bellamy stated that people talked almost as much about the City’s Valentine 
showing as they did Halloween and Christmas, even though this is a start, it will grow. Blain-
Bellamy said that Conway is a city of love and thanked staff for making it something that gets 
displayed.   
 
There was a short break.  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION:  Motion:  Goldfinch made a motion, seconded by Helms to enter into 
Executive Session for the following: A. Consideration of Appointments to Boards, Commissions 

21



February 5, 2024 
 
and Committees for the Lakeside Cemetery Committee [pursuant to SC Code §30-4-70(A) (1)]. 
B. Discussion on Contractual Negotiations Relative to Legal Services [pursuant to SC Code §30-
4-70 (A) (2)].  C. Discussion of Employment of City Administrator [pursuant to SC Code §30-4-
70 (A)(1)].  Vote: Unanimous. Motion carried. 

 
RECONVENE FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION:  Motion:  Blain-Bellamy made a motion, 
seconded by Jordan to leave Executive Session.  Vote:  Unanimous. Motion carried. 

 
POSSIBLE ACTION ON MATTERS DISCUSSED IN EXECUTIVE SESSION:  Motion:  
Goldfinch made a motion, seconded by White to reappoint Deborah Vrooman and Ben Burroughs 
to the Lakeside Cemetery Committee.  Vote:  Unanimous.  Motion carried.   
 
Motion:  Goldfinch made a motion, seconded by Jordan to authorize the Administrator to enter 
into a 6-month prosecutor contract with Fran Humphries, hire David Sligh for other issues, and 
hire others as needed.  Vote:  Unanimous.  Motion carried.   
 
ADJOURNMENT:  Motion: White made a motion, seconded by Butler to adjourn the meeting.  
Vote: Unanimous. Motion carried. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  Minutes approved by City Council this                       day of  
                                     , 2024. 
 
__________________________ 
    Alicia Shelley, City Clerk 

22



DATE:  FEBRUARY 19, 2024 
ITEM:  VI.A.  

 

 

Employee of the Month for February 2024 – Public Works 

23



 

 

 

  DATE:  FEBRUARY 19, 2024 
  ITEM:  VI.B.  
 
 
 
 

Conway Downtown Alive Annual Visitor Center Update – Hillary Howard 

 
 

24



DATE:  FEBRUARY 19, 2024 
ITEM:  VI.C.  

 

 

ISSUE: 

Keep America Beautiful award to Keep Conway Beautiful  

 

BACKGROUND:  

Keep Conway Beautiful has been selected as the recipient of the Keep America Beautiful 2023 
Innovation Award in the Local Program classification in the 30,000 and under population 
category for our Library Litter Kit Program. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Presented as information only. 

 

25



 DATE:  FEBRUARY 19, 2024  
 ITEM:  VII.A. 

ISSUE: 
First Reading and Public Hearing of Ordinance #ZA2024-03-18 (A) to amend the City’s Future Land 
Use Map (2019-2029) (FLUM) of the City of Conway Comprehensive Plan, relative to property located 
near the corner of Hwy 501 (Church St) and Mill Pond Rd (PIN 338-10-01-0015), consisting of 
approximately 8.96 acres (total), from the Conservation Preservation (CP) zoning district to the Highway 
Commercial (HC) (+/-7.48 acres) and Conservation Preservation (CP) (+/-1.48 acres) zoning districts. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The South Carolina Planning Enabling Act of 1994 defines the Comprehensive Plan adoption process 
for all jurisdictions in South Carolina. This is to ensure consistency with the public hearing and revision 
process for Comprehensive Plans. Section 6-29-510 of the SC Code of Laws addresses re-evaluation of the 
Comprehensive Plan, stating that the "local planning commission shall develop and maintain a planning 
process which will result in the systematic preparation and continual re-evaluation and updating of those 
elements considered critical, necessary, and desirable to guide the development and redevelopment of its 
area of jurisdiction." 
 

Since updating the Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan for the City in 2019, staff will 
occasionally review annexation and/or rezoning requests for zones that don't match the zone envisioned 
in the current Future Land Use Map (2019-2029). When a request is approved that is out of alignment 
with the Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan, the map must be updated to reflect this change. 
 

In July 2021, Council passed an ordinance providing for a method by which the Comprehensive Plan, in 
particular the Future Land Use map, may be amended. Section 13.1.17 (E) of the UDO states that a 
proposed amendment to the Comprehensive Plan (the entire document or singular elements) may be 
initiated by the City of Conway City Council, Planning Commission, Board of Zoning Appeals, Zoning 
Administrator, or Planning Director.  
 

In the case of PIN 338-10-01-0015, currently zoned Horry County Highway Commercial, the city’s Future 
Land Use Map (2019-2029) shows the entire property as Conservation Preservation (CP). The county’s 
FLUM identifies the property as being split between Commercial Corridors and Suburban; neither of 
which are conservation related. The property is currently vacant, and is directly adjacent to a gas 
station/convenience store. The applicants propose to combine the subject property with PIN 338-07-04-
0012, which is already in the city limits, zoned Highway Commercial (HC), and identified as HC on the 
city’s FLUM.  
 

Per Section 6.1.4 of the UDO, “No tract(s) of land shall hereafter be rezoned for a zoning classification 
different from that of the surrounding properties unless such tract(s) is a minimum of three (3) acres in 
area. Tracts less than three (3) acres in area annexed into the City limits, may be zoned for a classification 
different from that of the surrounding in-city properties provided such zoning classification is consistent 

26



with the Future Land Use Map of the Conway Comprehensive Plan.” 
 

Per Sec. 3.2.15 – Conservation Preservation (CP), of the UDO, “the intent of the CP district is to provide 
needed open space for general outdoor and indoor recreational uses, and to protect environmentally 
sensitive areas and flood prone areas from the encroachment of any residential, commercial, industrial, or 
other uses capable of adversely affecting the relatively undeveloped character of the district.” 
 

Per Sec. 3.2.10 – Highway Commercial (HC), of the UDO, “the intent of the HC District is to provide 
compatible locations to serve the automobile oriented commercial activities in harmony with major 
highway developments, reduce traffic congestions and to enhance the aesthetic atmosphere of the City.” 
 
SPLIT ZONING OF PARCELS AMENDMENT 
In addition to amending the FLUM, a recent amendment to the UDO adopted in 2023 regarding the split-
zoning of parcels that carved out an exception to prohibiting split-zoning, giving Planning Commission the 
ability to recommend portions of property be zoned as CP upon annexation/rezoning if such areas of 
property included in the request contains environmentally-sensitive areas (i.e. flood zones, floodways, 
wetlands, etc.) (Section 6.1.14 – Split Zoning of Parcels).  
 
SURROUNDING USES / ZONING DISTRICTS: 
All surrounding properties are currently zones HC, and uses include a gas/convenience store, vacant land, 
and a church/coffee shop across Hwy 501.  
 

This property was successfully annexed and rezoned to the City of Conway Highway Commercial 
(HC) and Conservation Preservation (CP) districts, via Ordinance #ZA2024-02-05 (C), adopted 
February 5, 2024. 
 
CITY OF CONWAY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 
The CURRENT future land use map of the Comprehensive Plan also identifies the entire parcel as being 
Conservation Preservation (CP), likely due to the existence of a flood zone and floodway on a portion of 
the property. The proposed amendment would split the future land use between Highway Commercial and 
Conservation Preservation (CP), as provided on the attached maps.  
 
PLANNING COMMISSION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval of the request to amend the future land use map for the 
subject property at their January 4, 2024 meeting.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-03-18 (A) amending the Future 
Land Use Map for PIN 338-10-01-0015. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Current / Future Land Use Maps (GIS maps) 

27



ORDINANCE #ZA2024-03-18 (A) 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP OF THE CITY OF 
CONWAY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN (2035) FOR PIN 338-10-01-0015 FROM THE 

CONSERVATION PRESERVATION (CP) DISTRICT TO THE HIGHWAY 
COMMERCIAL (HC) (+/-7.48 ACRES) AND CONSERVATION PRESERVATION (CP) 

(+/- 1.48 ACRES) DISTRICTS. 
 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to Title 6, Chapter 29 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as Amended known as 

the “South Carolina Local Government Comprehensive Planning Enabling Act of 1994” enabled 
the City of Conway to adopt the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) of the City of Conway, 
South Carolina; and 

 

WHEREAS, Article 13, Section 13.1.7 of the UDO provides that the regulations, restrictions, and boundaries set 
forth in said Ordinance may from time be amended, supplemented, changed, or repealed in 
accordance with S.C. State Code § 6-29-760; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Conway has adopted land use and comprehensive plans for nearly 40 years, and the 
City’s Future Land Use Map of the Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan was adopted in 
2019; and 

 

WHEREAS, procedures for adoption and amendments to the comprehensive plan were defined within the City 
of Conway Code of Ordinances in 2021; and 

 

WHEREAS, the property owner has requested that the Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan be 
amended relative to PIN 338-10-01-0015; and 

 

WHEREAS, prior to adoption or amendment of the Comprehensive Plan, a public hearing shall be held after no 
less than 30 days public notice has been placed in a newspaper of general circulation; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Conway Planning Commission reviewed the amendment to the Future Land Use Map 
at its January 4, 2024 meeting and recommended approval to City Council; and  

 

WHEREAS, notice of consideration of the amendment to the Future Land Use Map was placed in the Horry 
Independent Newspaper on January 11, 2024 for consideration (and public hearing) at the February 
19, 2024 meeting of City Council; and 

 

WHEREAS, it has been determined that the Future Land Use map of the City of Conway Comprehensive Plan, 
relative to PIN 338-10-01-0015, should be amended to ensure that the Comprehensive Plan is 
consistent with the conditions in the City. Therefore, be it 

 

ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Conway, in Council duly assembled, that the City of Conway 
Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use map be amended as attached hereto; and be it further 

 

ORDAINED, that all ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the 
extent of such inconsistency. 

 

EFFECTIVE DATE: This ordinance shall become effective upon final reading. 
 

 

28



RATIFIED BY CITY COUNCIL, duly assembled, this day of 
  , 2024. 

 
 

 
Barbara Jo Blain-Bellamy, Mayor Larry A. White, Mayor Pro Tem 

 
 

 
Amanda Butler, Council Member William M. Goldfinch IV, Council Member 

 
 

 
Julie Ann Hardwick, Council Member Beth Helms, Council Member 
 
 

              
Justin D. Jordan, Council Member ATTEST: Alicia Shelley, City Clerk 

 
 
 
First Reading:    

 

Final Reading:    
 
 
 

29



CHURCH ST

MILL
 PO

ND
 RD

OAK ST

ELM ST

ME
DL

EN
 PK

WY

KIN
G S

T

LOCHWOOD LN

FOREST VIEW RD

PINE ST

HWY 378

HWY 501

CHEROKEE ST

JENKINS FIELD RD

CAROLYN ST

SIX
TE

EN
TH

 AV
E

VIL
LA

GE
 ST

BUCK ST

LUNDY AVE

KIRKLAND DR
HARE ST

EL
KF

OR
D 

DR

JE
NK

INS
 DR

BOUNDARY ST

SLADE DR
SHANDWICK DR

MO
NT

I D
R

ROCKWOOD DR

AN
DE

RS
ON

 ST

SU
GG

S S
T

DANBY LN

PICKENS ST

CALHOUN RD

TURTLE ST

CH
UR

CH
ILL

 DR

FL
OY

D 
ST

PARK HILL DR

KENNETH ST

COLONY RD

TH
IRT

EE
NT

H A
VE

AM
BR

OS
E A

VE

COTTA
GE LN

OCONEE AVE

ALTMAN CIR

KE
NN

ET
H S

T

HWY 501

CHURCH ST

Date: 12/1/2023  Time: 10:03:44 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!ANNEXATION REZONINGS\2023\Mill Pond & HWY 501 (Health Services Inc)\GIS\FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR MILL POND AND HWY 501.mxd

PIN #: 338-10-01-0015
MILL POND & HWY 501

(P23-0347)³
Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PIN #: 338-10-01-0015

FUTURE LAND USE
CONSERVATION PRESERVATION

DOWNTOWN HISTORIC DISTRICT

FOREST AGRICULTURE

HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL

INDUSTRIAL

INSTITUTIONAL

LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MIXED USE

NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL

PLANNED DISTRICT

PROFESSIONAL

RECREATIONAL

RURAL RESIDENTIAL

UTILITY

PARCELS

Current Future Land Use Map

30



CHURCH ST

MILL
 PO

ND
 RD

OAK ST

ELM ST

ME
DL

EN
 PK

WY

KIN
G S

T

LOCHWOOD LN

FOREST VIEW RD

PINE ST

HWY 378

HWY 501

CHEROKEE ST

JENKINS FIELD RD

CAROLYN ST

SIX
TE

EN
TH

 AV
E

VIL
LA

GE
 ST

BUCK ST

LUNDY AVE

KIRKLAND DR
HARE ST

EL
KF

OR
D 

DR

JE
NK

INS
 DR

BOUNDARY ST

SLADE DR
SHANDWICK DR

MO
NT

I D
R

ROCKWOOD DR

AN
DE

RS
ON S

T

SU
GG

S S
T

DANBY LN

PICKENS ST

CALHOUN RD

TURTLE ST

CH
UR

CH
ILL

 DR

FL
OY

D 
ST

PARK HILL DR

KENNETH
 ST

COLONY RD

TH
IRT

EE
NT

H A
VE

AM
BR

OS
E A

VE

COTTA
GE LN

OCONEE AVE

ALTMAN CIR

KE
NN

ET
H 

ST

HWY 501

CHURCH ST

Date: 12/28/2023  Time: 2:20:04 PM  Path: \\coc-fs01\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!ANNEXATION REZONINGS\2023\Mill Pond & HWY 501 (Health Services Inc)\GIS\FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR MILL POND AND HWY 501 UPDATED 12-28-2023.mxd

PIN #: 338-10-01-0015
MILL POND & HWY 501

(P23-0347)³
Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

FUTURE LAND USE
CONSERVATION PRESERVATION

DOWNTOWN HISTORIC DISTRICT

FOREST AGRICULTURE

HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL

INDUSTRIAL

INSTITUTIONAL

LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MIXED USE

NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL

PLANNED DISTRICT

PROFESSIONAL

RECREATIONAL

RURAL RESIDENTIAL

UTILITY

PARCELS

PIN #: 338-10-01-0015
PORTION TO ZONE HC

PIN #: 338-10-01-0015
PORTION TO ZONE CP

Proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM)

31



CHURCH ST
MILL

 PO
ND

 RD

CAROLYN ST

CA
MEL

OT S
T

LUNDY AVE

RIC
HA

RD
SO

N S
T

JENKINS FIELD RD

AN
DE

RS
ON S

T

COTTA
GE LN

CHURCH ST

Date: 2/1/2024  Time: 10:24:57 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!ANNEXATION REZONINGS\!Previous Years\2023\Mill Pond & HWY 501 (Health Services Inc)\GIS\PROPOSED SPLIT ZONE MAP\SPLIT ZONE MAP FOR MILL POND AND HWY 501 UPDATED 2-1-2024.mxd

PIN #: 338-10-01-0015
MILL POND & HWY 501

(P23-0347)³
Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

REMAINING AREA NOT AFFECTED BY WETLANDS
325,692 SQ FT +/-

REVISED 2019 FLOOD ZONES
A

AE

VE

PARCELS

AREA AFFECTED BY WETLANDS
64,316 SQ FT +/-

32



DATE:  FEBRUARY 19, 2024 
ITEM:  VII. B. 

ISSUE: 
First reading and Public Hearing of Ordinance #ZA2024-03-18 (B) to amend the City’s Future Land 
Use Map (2019-2029) (FLUM) of the City of Conway Comprehensive Plan, relative to property located at 
1904 Rose Hill Drive (PIN 338-16-03-0005), consisting of approximately 0.43 acres, from the Medium 
Density Residential (R-2) zoning district to the Highway Commercial (HC) zoning district. 

BACKGROUND: 
The South Carolina Planning Enabling Act of 1994 defines the Comprehensive Plan adoption process 
for all jurisdictions in South Carolina. This is to ensure consistency with the public hearing and revision 
process for Comprehensive Plans. Section 6-29-510 of the SC Code of Laws addresses re-evaluation of the 
Comprehensive Plan, stating that the "local planning commission shall develop and maintain a planning 
process which will result in the systematic preparation and continual re-evaluation and updating of those 
elements considered critical, necessary, and desirable to guide the development and redevelopment of its 
area of jurisdiction." 

Since updating the Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan for the City in 2019, staff will 
occasionally review annexation and/or rezoning requests for zones that don't match the zone envisioned 
in the current Future Land Use Map (2019-2029). When a request is approved that is out of alignment 
with the Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan, the map must be updated to reflect this change. 

In July 2021, Council passed an ordinance providing for a method by which the Comprehensive Plan, in 
particular the Future Land Use map, may be amended. Section 13.1.17 (E) of the UDO states that a 
proposed amendment to the Comprehensive Plan (the entire document or singular elements) may be 
initiated by the City of Conway City Council, Planning Commission, Board of Zoning Appeals, Zoning 
Administrator, or Planning Director.  

In the case of PIN 338-16-03-0005, currently zoned City of Conway Medium Density Residential (R-2), 
the city’s Future Land Use Map (2019-2029) shows the entire property as Medium Density Residential 
(R-2). The property does currently contain on structure, and is directly adjacent to a cemetery. The 
applicants have not disclosed their intentions or reasoning for the rezoning request as it is not a 
requirement. The property located to the rear of the subject property is currently zoned Highway 
Commercial (HC), and identified as HC on the city’s FLUM.  

Per Section 6.1.4 of the UDO, “No tract(s) of land shall hereafter be rezoned for a zoning classification 
different from that of the surrounding properties unless such tract(s) is a minimum of three (3) acres in 
area. Tracts less than three (3) acres in area annexed into the City limits, may be zoned for a classification 
different from that of the surrounding in-city properties provided such zoning classification is consistent 
with the Future Land Use Map of the Conway Comprehensive Plan.” 

33



Per Sec. 3.2.4 Medium Density Residential (R-2), of the UDO, “the intent of the R-2 District is to provide 
areas for medium density attached, detached, semi-attached and multifamily residential development in the 
City of Conway, and to prohibit uses that would substantially interfere with the development or 
coordination of residential structures in the District. 
 
Per Sec. 3.2.10 – Highway Commercial (HC), of the UDO, “the intent of the HC District is to provide 
compatible locations to serve the automobile oriented commercial activities in harmony with major 
highway developments, reduce traffic congestions and to enhance the aesthetic atmosphere of the City.” 
 
SURROUNDING USES / ZONING DISTRICTS: 
Surrounding properties are currently zoned R-2 and HC, and uses include a cemetery, and vacant land.  
 
CITY OF CONWAY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 
The CURRENT future land use map of the Comprehensive Plan also identifies the entire parcel as being 
Medium Density Residential (R-2). 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval of the requested future land use map amendment for the 
subject property at their February 1, 2024 meeting.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval of Ordinance #ZA2024-03-18 (B) to amend the Future Land Use Maps for PIN 338-16-03-
0005. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

34



ORDINANCE #ZA2024-03-18 (B) 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP OF THE CITY OF 
CONWAY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FOR PIN 338-16-03-0005 FROM THE MEDIUM-

DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (R-2) DISTRICT TO THE HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL (HC) 
DISTRICT. 

 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to Title 6, Chapter 29 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as Amended known as 

the “South Carolina Local Government Comprehensive Planning Enabling Act of 1994” enabled 
the City of Conway to adopt the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) of the City of Conway, 
South Carolina; and 

 

WHEREAS, Article 13, Section 13.1.7 of the UDO provides that the regulations, restrictions, and boundaries set 
forth in said Ordinance may from time be amended, supplemented, changed, or repealed in 
accordance with S.C. State Code § 6-29-760; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Conway has adopted land use and comprehensive plans for nearly 40 years, and the 
City’s Future Land Use Map of the Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan was adopted in 
2019; and 

 

WHEREAS, procedures for adoption and amendments to the comprehensive plan were defined within the City 
of Conway Code of Ordinances in 2021; and 

 

WHEREAS, the property owner has requested that the Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan be 
amended relative to PIN 338-16-03-0005; and 

 

WHEREAS, prior to adoption or amendment of the Comprehensive Plan, a public hearing shall be held after no 
less than 30 days public notice has been placed in a newspaper of general circulation; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Conway Planning Commission reviewed the amendment to the Future Land Use Map 
at its February 1, 2024 meeting and recommended approval to City Council; and  

 

WHEREAS, notice of consideration of the amendment to the Future Land Use Map was placed in the Horry 
Independent Newspaper on January 11, 2024 for consideration (and public hearing) at the February 
19, 2024 meeting of City Council; and 

 

WHEREAS, it has been determined that the Future Land Use map of the City of Conway Comprehensive Plan, 
relative to PIN 338-16-03-0005, should be amended to ensure that the Comprehensive Plan is 
consistent with the conditions in the City. Therefore, be it 

 

ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Conway, in Council duly assembled, that the City of Conway 
Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use map be amended as attached hereto; and be it further 

 

ORDAINED, that all ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the 
extent of such inconsistency. 

 

EFFECTIVE DATE: This ordinance shall become effective upon final reading. 
 
 
 

35



RATIFIED BY CITY COUNCIL, duly assembled, this day of 
  , 2024. 

 
 
 

 
  Barbara Jo Blain-Bellamy, Mayor  Larry A. White, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 

 
  Amanda Butler, Council Member  William M. Goldfinch IV, Council Member  
 
 

 
  Julie Ann Hardwick, Council Member     Beth Helms, Council Member  
 
 

 
  Justin D. Jordan, Council Member  ATTEST: Alicia Shelley, City Clerk 
 
 
First Reading:     

 

Final Reading:    
 
 
 

 

36



37



HWY 378

HORRY ST

MARION ST MA
PL

E A
VE

GR
AIN

GE
R 

RD

MILL
 POND RD

BE
LL

AD
OR

A R
D

PA
RM

LE
Y D

R

WRIGHT BLVD

GREEN ST

HEIRLOOM DR

DILLON ST

MA
GN

OL
IA 

AV
E

ROSE HILL DR
HATTIE CT

ANGEL CIR

FLORENCE ST

SMITH JONES ST

GRAINGER CIR

Date: 1/8/2024  Time: 2:32:56 PM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\REZONINGS\2024\1904 Rose Hill Dr\GIS\FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR 1904 ROSE HILL DR.mxd

PIN #: 338-16-03-0005
TMS #: 136-04-11-021

1904 ROSEHILL DR
(P24-0005)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PIN #: 338-16-03-0005

FUTURE LAND USE
CONSERVATION PRESERVATION

DOWNTOWN HISTORIC DISTRICT

FOREST AGRICULTURE

HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL

INDUSTRIAL

INSTITUTIONAL

LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MIXED USE

NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL

PLANNED DISTRICT

PROFESSIONAL

RECREATIONAL

RURAL RESIDENTIAL

UTILITY

PARCELS

CURRENT Future Land Use Map

38



HWY 378

HORRY ST

MARION ST MA
PL

E A
VE

GR
AIN

GE
R 

RD

MILL
 POND RD

BE
LL

AD
OR

A R
D

PA
RM

LE
Y D

R

WRIGHT BLVD

GREEN ST

HEIRLOOM DR

DILLON ST

MA
GN

OL
IA 

AV
E

ROSE HILL DR
HATTIE CT

ANGEL CIR

FLORENCE ST

SMITH JONES ST

GRAINGER CIR

Date: 2/8/2024  Time: 10:04:54 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\REZONINGS\2024\1904 Rose Hill Dr\GIS\PROPOSED CHANGE IN FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR 1904 ROSE HILL DR.mxd

PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO FUTURE LAND 
USE MAP FOR PIN #: 338-16-03-0005

1904 ROSEHILL DR
(P24-0005)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PROPOSED CHANGE FROM MEDIUM
DENSITY RESIDENTIAL TO HIGHWAY
COMMERCIAL

FUTURE LAND USE
CONSERVATION PRESERVATION

DOWNTOWN HISTORIC DISTRICT

FOREST AGRICULTURE

HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL

INDUSTRIAL

INSTITUTIONAL

LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MIXED USE

NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL

PLANNED DISTRICT

PROFESSIONAL

RECREATIONAL

RURAL RESIDENTIAL

UTILITY

PARCELS

39



 DATE:  FEBRUARY 19, 2024 
 ITEM:  VIII. A. 

ISSUE: 
First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-03-18 (C) to rezone approximately 0.43 acres located at 1904 
Rose Hill Drive from Medium Density Residential (R-2) to Highway Commercial (HC) (PIN 338-16-
03-0005). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On January, 5 2024, the applicant submitted a rezoning application for the subject property, located 1904 
Rose Hill Drive. The property is currently zoned Medium Density Residential (R-2). The property 
currently contains one structure. It is not a requirement for an applicant to disclose any future plans for 
a property, however, it is staff’s understanding that this property would be included in a Parker’s Kitchen 
design plan.  
 

The applicant is requesting to rezone the property to Highway Commercial (HC), and plans to combine 
this parcel with the adjacent parcels that also have frontage on Hwy 378; which were rezoned to HC last 
year.  
 

Per Section 3.2.10 of the UDO, the intent of the (City of Conway) Highway Commercial (HC) district 
is to provide compatible locations to serve the automobile-oriented commercial activities in harmony 
with major highway developments, reduce traffic congestions and to enhance the aesthetic atmosphere 
of the City.  
 
CITY OF CONWAY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 
The future land use map of the Comprehensive Plan identifies the property as Medium Density 
Residential (R-2). The Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) defines Medium Density Residential as 
follows: 
 

3.2.4 Medium Density Residential (R-2) 
The intent of the R-2 District is to provide areas for medium density attached, detached, semi-attached 
and multifamily residential development in the City of Conway, and to prohibit uses that would 
substantially interfere with the development or coordination of residential structures in the District. 
 

Surrounding Uses / Zoning Districts: 
The subject property is surrounded by several different zoning districts and uses, including Highway 
Commercial (HC), and Medium Density Residential (R-2). Uses include a cemetery (across the street), 
and wooded lots.  
 
PLANNING COMMISSION: 
Planning Commission held the required public hearing on the request at their February 1, 2024 meeting, 
and recommended approval of the request to rezone to HC. 

40



STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-03-18 (C) to rezone the property 
to the City of Conway Highway Commercial (HC) district. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Application; 

GIS Maps 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

41



ORDINANCE #ZA2024-03-18 (C) 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO REZONE APPROXIMATELY 0.43 ACRES OF PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT 1904 ROSE HILL DRIVE (PIN 338-16-03-0005) FROM THE CITY OF 
MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (R-2) DISTRICT TO THE CITY OF CONWAY 

HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL DISTRICT. 
 

WHEREAS,  pursuant to Title 6, Chapter 29 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, the City of Conway 
  enacted the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Conway, South Carolina; and 
 
WHEREAS, Article 13, Section 13.1.7 of the City of Conway Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) 

provides that regulations, restrictions, and boundaries set forth in the UDO may be 
amended, supplemented, changed, or repealed in accordance with S.C. Code §6-29-760; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, a petition has been submitted to rezone approximately 0.43 acres located at 1904 Rose 

Hill Drive (PIN 338-16-03-0005) from the City of Conway Medium Density Residential 
district to the City of Conway Highway Commercial district; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Conway, on February 1, 2024, held the required 

public hearing to discuss the request to rezone from Medium Density Residential (R-2) 
to Highway Commercial (HC), and made their recommendation; and 

 
WHEREAS, City Council determined that it is in the best interest of the health, safety, and general 

welfare of the City of Conway and its citizens to approve the subject rezoning petition as 
presented. Therefore, be it 

 
ORDAINED, by Conway City Council, in Council duly assembled, that the zoning boundaries of the 

Official Map of the City of Conway, together with explanatory matter herein, be revised 
as follows: 

 

Rezone approximately 0.43 acres located at 1904 Rose Hill Drive (PIN 338-16-
03-0005) from Medium Density Residential (R-2) to Highway Commercial (HC); 
and be it further 

 
ORDAINED, that all ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby 

repealed to the extent of such inconsistency. 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE: This Ordinance shall become effective upon final reading.  

42



RATIFIED BY CITY COUNCIL, duly assembled, this day of 
  , 2024. 

 
 
 
Barbara Jo Blain-Bellamy, Mayor Larry A. White, Mayor Pro Tem 

 
 
 
Amanda Butler, Council Member William M. Goldfinch IV, Council Member 

 
 
 
Julie Ann Hardwick, Council Member Beth Helms, Council Member 
 
 

              
Justin D. Jordan, Council Member ATTEST: Alicia Shelley, City Clerk 

 
 
 
First Reading:     

 

Final Reading:    
  

43



HWY 378

GR
AIN

GE
R 

RD

ROSE HILL DR

ANGEL CIR

ETERNAL DR

BE
LL

AD
OR

A R
D

Date: 1/8/2024  Time: 2:37:22 PM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\REZONINGS\2024\1904 Rose Hill Dr\GIS\ZOOMED IN AERIAL MAP FOR 1904 ROSE HILL DR.mxd

PIN #: 338-16-03-0005
TMS #: 136-04-11-021

1904 ROSEHILL DR
(P24-0005)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

Legend
PARCELS

PIN #: 338-16-03-0005

44



HWY 378

HORRY ST

MARION ST MA
PL

E A
VE

GR
AIN

GE
R 

RD

MILL
 POND RD

BE
LL

AD
OR

A R
D

PA
RM

LE
Y D

R

WRIGHT BLVD

GREEN ST

HEIRLOOM DR

DILLON ST

MA
GN

OL
IA 

AV
E

ROSE HILL DR
HATTIE CT

ANGEL CIR

FLORENCE ST

SMITH JONES ST

GRAINGER CIR

Date: 1/8/2024  Time: 2:36:31 PM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\REZONINGS\2024\1904 Rose Hill Dr\GIS\ZOOMED OUT AERIAL MAP FOR 1904 ROSE HILL DR.mxd

PIN #: 338-16-03-0005
TMS #: 136-04-11-021

1904 ROSEHILL DR
(P24-0005)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

Legend
PARCELS

PIN #: 338-16-03-0005

45



CFA

HC

HCHC

HC

HC

HWY 378

HORRY ST

MARION ST MA
PL

E A
VE

GR
AIN

GE
R 

RD

MILL
 POND RD

BE
LL

AD
OR

A R
D

PA
RM

LE
Y D

R WRIGHT BLVD

GREEN ST

HEIRLOOM DR

DILLON ST

MA
GN

OL
IA 

AV
E

ROSE HILL DR
HATTIE CT

ANGEL CIR

FLORENCE ST

SMITH JONES ST

GRAINGER CIR

Date: 1/8/2024  Time: 2:30:58 PM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\REZONINGS\2024\1904 Rose Hill Dr\GIS\ZONING MAP FOR 1904 ROSE HILL DR.mxd

PIN #: 338-16-03-0005
TMS #: 136-04-11-021

1904 ROSEHILL DR
(P24-0005)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

CONWAY ZONING
RA

RR

R

R1

R2

R3

R4

P

IN

NC

HC

CC

CBD

LI

HI

FA

CP

WRD1

WRD2

PD

MU

MM

IC

COUNTY ZONING

PARCELS

XX

PIN #: 338-16-03-0005

46



HWY 378

HORRY ST

MARION ST MA
PL

E A
VE

GR
AIN

GE
R 

RD

MILL
 POND RD

BE
LL

AD
OR

A R
D

PA
RM

LE
Y D

R

WRIGHT BLVD

GREEN ST

HEIRLOOM DR

DILLON ST

MA
GN

OL
IA 

AV
E

ROSE HILL DR
HATTIE CT

ANGEL CIR

FLORENCE ST

SMITH JONES ST

GRAINGER CIR

Date: 1/8/2024  Time: 2:32:56 PM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\REZONINGS\2024\1904 Rose Hill Dr\GIS\FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR 1904 ROSE HILL DR.mxd

PIN #: 338-16-03-0005
TMS #: 136-04-11-021

1904 ROSEHILL DR
(P24-0005)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PIN #: 338-16-03-0005

FUTURE LAND USE
CONSERVATION PRESERVATION

DOWNTOWN HISTORIC DISTRICT

FOREST AGRICULTURE

HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL

INDUSTRIAL

INSTITUTIONAL

LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MIXED USE

NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL

PLANNED DISTRICT

PROFESSIONAL

RECREATIONAL

RURAL RESIDENTIAL

UTILITY

PARCELS

47



HWY 378

HORRY ST

MARION ST MA
PL

E A
VE

GR
AIN

GE
R 

RD

MILL
 POND RD

BE
LL

AD
OR

A R
D

PA
RM

LE
Y D

R

WRIGHT BLVD

GREEN ST

HEIRLOOM DR

DILLON ST

MA
GN

OL
IA 

AV
E

ROSE HILL DR
HATTIE CT

ANGEL CIR

FLORENCE ST

SMITH JONES ST

GRAINGER CIR

Date: 1/8/2024  Time: 2:34:43 PM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\REZONINGS\2024\1904 Rose Hill Dr\GIS\FLOOD ZONE MAP FOR 1904 ROSE HILL DR.mxd

PIN #: 338-16-03-0005
TMS #: 136-04-11-021

1904 ROSEHILL DR
(P24-0005)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PIN #: 338-16-03-0005

REVISED 2019 FLOOD ZONES
0.2 PCT ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD HAZARD

A

AE

VE

PARCELS

48



49



                                                                                                          DATE:  FEBRUARY 19, 2024 
                                                                                                          ITEM:  VIII. B. 
 
ISSUE: 
First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-03-18 (D) to annex approximately 11.53 acres of property 
located at/near the intersection of Gardner Lacy Rd and Hwy 501 (PIN 399-00-00-0403), and rezone 
from the Horry County Highway Commercial (HC) to the City of Conway Highway Commercial (HC) 
zoning district.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
On January 8th, the applicant submitted a rezoning application for the subject property, located at the 
intersection of Gardner Lacy Rd and Hwy 501. The property is currently zoned Horry County Highway 
Commercial (HC), and is currently vacant, with the exception of signage. The application to rezone does 
not specify the proposed use of the property, and it is not required that the use be provided. Any use in 
the requested zoning district would be permitted should the request be approved.  
 

Per Section 3.2.10 of the UDO, the intent of the Highway Commercial (HC) district is to provide 
compatible locations to serve the automobile-oriented commercial activities in harmony with major 
highway developments, reduce traffic congestions and to enhance the aesthetic atmosphere of the City.  
 
Surrounding uses/Zoning Districts: 
The property abuts parcels zoned City of Conway Light Industrial (LI). Other adjacent zoning 
classifications are Horry County Light Industrial (LI) and Horry County Highway Commercial (HC). 
Uses include a both vacant property and a gas station (zoned HC), the property also abuts properties with 
manufacturing facilities (zoned County LI), and distribution centers (zoned LI).  
 
CITY OF CONWAY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 
The future land use map of the Comprehensive Plan also identifies the entire parcel as Highway 
Commercial (HC).  
 
PLANNING COMMISSION: 
Planning Commission held the required public hearing on the request at their February 1, 2024 meeting, 
and recommended approval of the request to annex and rezone to HC. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-03-18 (D) to annex and rezone 
the property to the City of Conway Highway Commercial (HC) district. 
 
 
 

50



ORDINANCE #ZA2024-03-18 (D) 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ANNEX APPROXIMATELY 11.53 ACRES OF PROPERTY 
LOCATED    AT/NEAR THE INTERSECTION OF GARDNER LACY ROAD AND 
HIGHWAY 501 (PIN 339-00-00-0403), AND REQUEST TO REZONE FROM THE 

HORRY COUNTY HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL (HC) DISTRICT TO THE CITY OF 
CONWAY HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL (HC) DISTRICT. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CONWAY:  

 
SECTION 1. FINDINGS: 
A petition has been submitted to the City Council of the City of Conway to annex approximately 11.53 
acres of property described herein and represented on a map. The City Council of the City of Conway 
has determined that the annexation of this area into the City of Conway will be to the advantage of the 
municipality. 

 
The area proposed for annexation is adjacent to the present City limits. The petition for annexation of 
land and declared zoning is hereby accepted by the governing body of the municipality of Conway, 
and made a part of the City of Conway, South Carolina, to wit: 

 
ALL AND SINGULAR, those certain parcels, lots, or tracts of land in Conway Township, County 
and    State aforesaid, containing approximately 11.53 acres of property located at/near the intersection 
of Gardner Lacy Rd and Hwy 501 (PIN 399-00-00-0403), and request to rezone from the Horry County 
Highway Commercial (HC) district, to the City of Conway Highway Commercial (HC) district. 

 
This annexation includes all waterways, roads, and rights-of-way adjacent to the property. 
For a more specific description of said property, see attached map. 

 
SECTION 2. APPLICATION OF ZONING ORDINANCE: 
The property is admitted as City of Conway Highway Commercial (HC) area       under the zoning 
laws of the municipality. 

 
SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE: 
The annexation is effective as of the date of the final reading of this Ordinance. 

 
AND BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that such changes shall be made on the Official Zoning Map. 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent 
of such inconsistency. 

 

51



RATIFIED BY CITY COUNCIL, duly assembled, this day of 
  , 2024. 

 
 

 
Barbara Jo Blain-Bellamy, Mayor Larry A. White, Mayor Pro Tem 

 
 
 
Amanda Butler, Council Member William M. Goldfinch IV, Council Member 

 
 

 
Julie Ann Hardwick, Council Member Beth Helms, Council Member 
 
 

              
Justin D. Jordan, Council Member ATTEST: Alicia Shelley, City Clerk 

 
 
 
First Reading:     

 

Final Reading:    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

52



HWY 501

GARDNER LACY RD

CONBRACO CIR

POSTAL WAY

MYR
TL

E B
EA

CH
 NA

IONA
L G

C

SANTEE COOPER DISTRIBUTION RD

CONBRACO CIR

HWY 501

Date: 1/12/2024  Time: 9:20:00 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!ANNEXATION REZONINGS\2024\Postal Way\Founders National Golf, LLC\GIS\ZOOMED IN AERIAL MAP FOR FOUNDERS NATIONAL GOLF LLC.mxd

PIN #: 399-00-00-0403
TMS #: 151-00-03-043

FOUNDERS NATIONAL GOLF LLC
(P24-0007)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

Legend
PARCELS

PIN #: 399-00-00-0403

53



HWY 501

POSTAL WAY

GARDNER LACY RD

WILD WING BLVD

SOUTHERN TRL

MYRTLE RIDGE DR

NATIONAL DR

CONBRACO CIR

MYRTLE TRACE DR

MIDDLE RIDGE AVE

FAIRWAY LN ALLS
PICE LN

MYR
TL

E B
EA

CH
 NA

ION
AL

 GC

TEE SHOT DR

KISKADEE LOOP

WILLET COVE

PRIVATE DR

HWY 501

Date: 1/12/2024  Time: 9:16:32 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!ANNEXATION REZONINGS\2024\Postal Way\Founders National Golf, LLC\GIS\ZOOMED OUT AERIAL MAP FOR FOUNDERS NATIONAL GOLF LLC.mxd

PIN #: 399-00-00-0403
TMS #: 151-00-03-043

FOUNDERS NATIONAL GOLF LLC
(P24-0007)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

Legend
PARCELS

PIN #: 399-00-00-0403

54



LI

HC

HC CFA

CFA

LI

LI

HC

SF 10

HC

LI

PUD

PUD

SF 10

HC

HC

HC
PUD

OPI

HC

HC

HC

SF 10

PUD

SF 10

LI

PUD

PUD

HC

HC

MRD2

OPI

PUD

PUD

PUD

SF 10

PUD

SF 10

MRD2

LI

OPI

OPISF 10
HWY 501

POSTAL WAY

WILD WING BLVD

SO
UT

HE
RN

 TR
L

MYRTLE RIDGE DR

NATIONAL DR

CONBRACO CIR

MIDDLE RIDGE AVE

FAIRWAY LN ALLS
PICE LN

TEE SHOT DR

KISKADEE LOOP

WILLET COVE

HWY 501

Date: 1/12/2024  Time: 9:19:06 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!ANNEXATION REZONINGS\2024\Postal Way\Founders National Golf, LLC\GIS\ZONING MAP FOR FOUNDERS NATIONAL GOLF LLC.mxd

PIN #: 399-00-00-0403
TMS #: 151-00-03-043

FOUNDERS NATIONAL GOLF LLC
(P24-0007)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

CONWAY ZONING
RA

RR

R

R1

R2

R3

R4

P

IN

NC

HC

CC

CBD

LI

HI

FA

CP

WRD1

WRD2

PD

MU

MM

IC

COUNTY ZONING

PARCELS

XX

PIN #: 399-00-00-0403

55



HWY 501

POSTAL WAY

GARDNER LACY RD

WILD WING BLVD

SOUTHERN TRL

MYRTLE RIDGE DR

NATIONAL DR

CONBRACO CIR

MYRTLE TRACE DR

MIDDLE RIDGE AVE

FAIRWAY LN ALLS
PICE LN

MYR
TL

E B
EA

CH
 NA

ION
AL

 GC

TEE SHOT DR

KISKADEE LOOP

WILLET COVE

PRIVATE DR

HWY 501

Date: 1/12/2024  Time: 9:18:18 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!ANNEXATION REZONINGS\2024\Postal Way\Founders National Golf, LLC\GIS\FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR FOUNDERS NATIONAL GOLF LLC.mxd

PIN #: 399-00-00-0403
TMS #: 151-00-03-043

FOUNDERS NATIONAL GOLF LLC
(P24-0007)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PIN #: 399-00-00-0403

FUTURE LAND USE
CONSERVATION PRESERVATION

DOWNTOWN HISTORIC DISTRICT

FOREST AGRICULTURE

HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL

INDUSTRIAL

INSTITUTIONAL

LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MIXED USE

NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL

PLANNED DISTRICT

PROFESSIONAL

RECREATIONAL

RURAL RESIDENTIAL

UTILITY

PARCELS

56



HWY 501

POSTAL WAY

GARDNER LACY RD

WILD WING BLVD

SOUTHERN TRL

MYRTLE RIDGE DR

NATIONAL DR

CONBRACO CIR

MYRTLE TRACE DR

MIDDLE RIDGE AVE

FAIRWAY LN ALLS
PICE LN

MYR
TL

E B
EA

CH
 NA

ION
AL

 GC

TEE SHOT DR

KISKADEE LOOP

WILLET COVE

PRIVATE DR

HWY 501

Date: 1/12/2024  Time: 9:17:45 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!ANNEXATION REZONINGS\2024\Postal Way\Founders National Golf, LLC\GIS\FLOOD ZONE MAP FOR FOUNDERS NATIONAL GOLF LLC.mxd

PIN #: 399-00-00-0403
TMS #: 151-00-03-043

FOUNDERS NATIONAL GOLF LLC
(P24-0007)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PIN #: 399-00-00-0403

REVISED 2019 FLOOD ZONES
0.2 PCT ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD HAZARD

A

AE

VE

PARCELS

57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



      DATE: FEBRUARY 19, 2024 
      ITEM: VIII. C. 
 
ISSUE: 
First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-03-18 (E) to annex approximately 0.7 acres located at 3648 Ole 
Alston Avenue (PIN 369-10-02-0004), and rezone from the Horry County Commercial Forest Agriculture 
(CFA) district to the City of Conway Low/Medium-Density Residential (R-1) district. 
 

BACKGROUND: 
The annexation application was submitted by Jerry Rexroad, of Ashford Properties, LLC, as a 
requirement to connect to city utility services. According to Horry County Register of Deed’s website, 
the deed was transferred into the applicant’s name on January 11, 2024. There is an existing single-
family dwelling on the property. Restrictive covenants were recorded for this property on January 31, 
2024.  
 

This property is contiguous to properties within the Woodland Lakes Subdivision. In April 2022, council 
denied an annexation request for the neighboring property. Ole Alston Avenue is a county owned and 
does not appear to be paved. Per Section 10.5.2 – Street Improvements, of the UDO: 
 

“Any existing street segment that has not been accepted for maintenance by either the City of Conway, Horry 
County, or SCDOT, and that is to serve as the required frontage for one or more lots created, shall be improved 
and dedicated to the public in such a manner that the street segment meets the standards for the particular 
classification of street, including right-of-way width. Such street segment shall be directly connected to the 
existing public street system by way of at least one public street accepted for maintenance by the City of Conway, 
Horry County, or SCDOT. No development shall be permitted on any street that is an “island” not connected 
directly to the public street system.” 

 

This would mean that any property that is currently vacant on Ole Alston Avenue that is adjacent to City 
property, required to annex, would be required to improve the roadway(s) leading to the property before 
any development could take place, which would place a large financial burden on an individual property 
owner.  
 

CITY OF CONWAY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 
The Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan identifies this property as Low/Medium-Density 
Residential (R-1). 
The intent of the R-1 District is to provide for the preservation and expansion of areas for low to medium 
density, detached single-family residential development in the City of Conway. The district shall present 
a relatively spacious character, promote quiet, livable neighborhoods, and prohibit uses that are 
incompatible with the residential nature of the surrounding area. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
Staff recommends against annexation of the property at 3648 Ole Alston Avenue. 

65



ORDINANCE #ZA2024-03-18 (E) 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ANNEX APPROXIMATELY 0.7 ACRES OF PROPERTY 
LOCATED    AT 3648 OLE ALSTON AVE (PIN 369-10-02-0004), AND REQUEST TO 

REZONE FROM THE HORRY COUNTY COMMERCIAL FOREST AGRICULTURE 
(CFA) DISTRICT TO THE CITY OF CONWAY LOW/MEDIUM-DENSITY 

RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (R-1) DISTRICT. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CONWAY:  

 
SECTION 1. FINDINGS: 
A petition has been submitted to the City Council of the City of Conway to annex approximately 0.7 
acres of property described herein and represented on a map. The City Council of the City of Conway 
has determined that the annexation of this area into the City of Conway will be to the advantage of the 
municipality. 

 
The area proposed for annexation is adjacent to the present City limits. The petition for annexation of 
land and declared zoning is hereby accepted by the governing body of the municipality of Conway, 
and made a part of the City of Conway, South Carolina, to wit: 

 
ALL AND SINGULAR, those certain parcels, lots, or tracts of land in Conway Township, County 
and    State aforesaid, containing approximately 0.7 acres of property located at 3648 Ole Alston Avenue 
(PIN 369-10-02-0004) and request to rezone from the Horry County Commercial Forest Agriculture 
(CFA) district to the City of Conway Low/Medium-Density Residential (R-1) district. 

 
This annexation includes all waterways, roads, and rights-of-way adjacent to the property. 
For a more specific description of said property, see attached map. 

 
SECTION 2. APPLICATION OF ZONING ORDINANCE: 
The property is admitted as City of Conway Low/Medium Density Residential District (R-1) 
area       under the zoning laws of the municipality. 

 
SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE: 
The annexation is effective as of the date of the final reading of this Ordinance. 

 
AND BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that such changes shall be made on the Official Zoning Map. 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent 
of such inconsistency. 

66



RATIFIED BY CITY COUNCIL, duly assembled, this day of 
  , 2024. 

 
 
 

 
Barbara Jo Blain-Bellamy, Mayor Larry A. White, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
 

 
Amanda Butler, Council Member William M. Goldfinch IV, Council Member
  
 
 

 
Julie Ann Hardwick, Council Member  Beth Helms, Council Member  
 
 
 

 
Justin D. Jordan, Council Member ATTEST: Alicia Shelley, City Clerk 
 
 
First Reading:     

 

Final Reading:    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

67



MER
GANSE

R DR

OL
E A

LS
TO

N 
AV

E

Date: 1/31/2024  Time: 1:14:24 PM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R1 ANNEXATIONS\2024\Ole Alston Ave\GIS\ZOOMED IN AERIAL MAP FOR OLE ALSTON AVE.mxd

PIN #: 369-10-02-0004
TMS #: 136-00-03-116

OLE ALSTON AVE
(P24-0026)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

Legend
PARCELS

PIN #: 369-10-02-0004

68



DIRTY BRANCH RD

MER
GAN

SE
R D

R

RE
GINA

 RD

OL
E A

LS
TO

N A
VE

GE
OR

GE
 LN

MANDARIN DR

FO
RE

ST
 AC

RE
S L

N

IRON CT

TEAL CT

RUDDY CT

ANCONA CT

RED HEAD CT

SHOVELERS CT

Date: 1/31/2024  Time: 1:13:17 PM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R1 ANNEXATIONS\2024\Ole Alston Ave\GIS\ZOOMED OUT AERIAL MAP FOR OLE ALSTON AVE.mxd

PIN #: 369-10-02-0004
TMS #: 136-00-03-116

OLE ALSTON AVE
(P24-0026)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

Legend
PARCELS

PIN #: 369-10-02-0004

69



CFA

CFA

CFA

CFA

CFA

CFA

CFA

CFA

SF 20

DIRTY BRANCH RD

MER
GAN

SE
R D

R

RE
GINA

 RD

OL
E A

LS
TO

N A
VE

GE
OR

GE
 LN

MANDARIN DR

FO
RE

ST
 AC

RE
S L

N

IRON CT

TEAL CT

RUDDY CT

ANCONA CT

RED HEAD CT

SHOVELERS CT

Date: 1/31/2024  Time: 12:59:20 PM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R1 ANNEXATIONS\2024\Ole Alston Ave\GIS\ZONING MAP FOR OLE ALSTON AVE.mxd

PIN #: 369-10-02-0004
TMS #: 136-00-03-116

OLE ALSTON AVE
(P24-0026)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

CONWAY ZONING
RA

RR

R

R1

R2

R3

R4

P

IN

NC

HC

CC

CBD

LI

HI

FA

CP

WRD1

WRD2

PD

MU

MM

IC

COUNTY ZONING

PARCELS

XX

PIN #: 369-10-02-0004

70



DIRTY BRANCH RD

MER
GAN

SE
R D

R

RE
GINA

 RD

OL
E A

LS
TO

N A
VE

GE
OR

GE
 LN

MANDARIN DR

FO
RE

ST
 AC

RE
S L

N

IRON CT

TEAL CT

RUDDY CT

ANCONA CT

RED HEAD CT

SHOVELERS CT

Date: 1/31/2024  Time: 1:00:12 PM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R1 ANNEXATIONS\2024\Ole Alston Ave\GIS\FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR OLE ALSTON AVE.mxd

PIN #: 369-10-02-0004
TMS #: 136-00-03-116

OLE ALSTON AVE
(P24-0026)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PIN #: 369-10-02-0004

FUTURE LAND USE
CONSERVATION PRESERVATION

DOWNTOWN HISTORIC DISTRICT

FOREST AGRICULTURE

HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL

INDUSTRIAL

INSTITUTIONAL

LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MIXED USE

NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL

PLANNED DISTRICT

PROFESSIONAL

RECREATIONAL

RURAL RESIDENTIAL

UTILITY

PARCELS

71



DIRTY BRANCH RD

MER
GAN

SE
R D

R

RE
GINA

 RD

OL
E A

LS
TO

N A
VE

GE
OR

GE
 LN

MANDARIN DR

FO
RE

ST
 AC

RE
S L

N

IRON CT

TEAL CT

RUDDY CT

ANCONA CT

RED HEAD CT

SHOVELERS CT

Date: 1/31/2024  Time: 1:04:20 PM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R1 ANNEXATIONS\2024\Ole Alston Ave\GIS\FLOOD ZONE MAP FOR OLE ALSTON AVE.mxd

PIN #: 369-10-02-0004
TMS #: 136-00-03-116

OLE ALSTON AVE
(P24-0026)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PIN #: 369-10-02-0004

REVISED 2019 FLOOD ZONES
0.2 PCT ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD HAZARD

A

AE

VE

PARCELS

72



73



74



75



               DATE: FEBRUARY 19, 2024 
               ITEM: IX. A. 
 
 
ISSUE: 
 
Approval of name for new subdivision located on Medlen Parkway, called “Kings Court”. (PIN’s 338-
00-00-0001, 338-00-00-0034, & 337-05-02-0005) 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The proposed development is currently being reviewed by the Technical Review Committee. The 
preliminary plans call for this development to consist of 107 Single-Family detached dwelling units and 
98 Townhome units. The applicant, DRG – Development Resource Group, requests to name the 
proposed subdivision “Kings Court” upon plan approval (PIN’s 338-00-00-0001, 338-00-00-0034, & 
337-05-02-0005). 
 
According to Section 10.3.18 of the City of Conway Unified Development Ordinance (UDO), “all 
subdivision names must be reviewed and adopted by Conway City Council.” 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
Approve “Kings Court” as the name of the proposed development as requested by the applicant. 
 

 

  

 

76



8"(MA) 3MO WITNESS

~ V I C I N I T Y    M A P    N.T.S. ~

Myrtle Beach, SC 29577
Telephone: 843-839-3350

www.drgpllc.com

4703 Oleander Drive

SPACE RESERVED FOR PLANNING APPROVAL ONLY

philip@drgpllc.com

Development Resource Group, LLC

K
IN

G
ST

O
N

 T
RA

C
T 

SI
N

G
LE

 F
A

M
IL

Y 
SU

BD
IV

IS
IO

N

C
O

V
ER

 S
H

EE
T

"I hereby state that to the best of my professional knowledge, information, and
belief, the survey shown hereon was made in accordance with the requirements of
the Standards of Practice Manual for Surveying in South Carolina, and meets or
exceeds the requirements as specified therein.

Philip T. Hornbeck, P.E., P.L.S. No. 40337
as agent

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

9.

10.

11.

12.

NOTES:

Tax Parcel:       PIN: 338-00-00-0001
             TMS: 122-00-04-023

Owner of Record: Kingston Presbyterian Church Inc.
800 3rd Ave
Conway, SC 29526

Declaration is made to original purchaser of the survey. It is not
transferable to additional institutions or subsequent owners.

Surveyor has made no investigation or independent search for
easements of record, encumbrances, restrictive covenants,
ownership title evidence, or any other facts that an accurate and
current title search may disclose.

Subsurface and environmental conditions were not examined or
considered as a part of this survey. No statement is made
concerning the existence of underground or overhead containers
or facilities that may affect the use or development of this tract.

Last property transfer Deed Book 3390, Page 1480.

1/2" Iron Pipes Set at all corners unless noted otherwise.

All Bearings are based upon the South Carolina State Plane
Coordinate System (NAD83)(2011).  All distances shown are
Horizontal not grid distances.

Date of Field Survey: July, 2023

This survey is only valid if print of same has original signature and
embossed seal of the surveyor.

8. This property is subject to all easements or restrictions of record.

REFERENCES:
1. Plat for "Kingston Presbyterian Church" dated July 8th 2021 by

Jones/Godfrey & Associates Land Surveyors and recorded in Plat
Book 300, Page 45 at the Horry County Register of Deeds.

This property appears to be located in Flood Zone "X" & "AE" ,
According to FEMA flood zones per F.I.R.M.  45051C 0527 K, dated Dec.
16th, 2021. Any Flood zone lines shown hereon are based on provided
data. This plat is not the basis for flood zone determination or flood
zone related issues.

SHEET 1 OF 5

PIN 338-00-00-0001
THIS INFORMATION PROVIDED AT THE REQUEST OF THE CITY OF CONWAY

AND SHOULD NOT BE RELIED UPON FOR LEGAL DETERMINATIONS

TOTAL - SUBDIVISION DATA
TOTAL TRACT 62.74   acres         2,732,852 sf.
TOTAL RIGHT OF WAY            7.64   acres             332,628 sf.
TOTAL COMMON AREA                           31.86   acres          1,387,997 sf.
PUMP STATION                                          0.05   acres                 2,275 sf.
TOTAL PRIVATE LOTS     23.19   acres          1,009,952 sf.

TOTAL LINEAR FEET OF PUBLIC STREETS    6,099.59   lf
Philip Street 2,286.56   lf
Carsens Ferry Drive 1,712.82   lf
Imperial Street      851.49   lf
Gold Crest Drive       635.85   lf
Crown Road    318.23   lf
Woodcliffe Drive                                                                         144.98   lf
Ellouise Drive                                                                              149.64  lf

TOTAL # OF LOTS     107
SMALLEST LOT (#107)     8,150 sqft
LARGEST LOT (#79)                    12,271 sqft

1
2

3
4

107
106

105

104

103

5

6

7

8

9

10

102

101

100

99
98

97

96

87

88

89

11

86

90

12

13

14

15

16

17
18

19

85

84

82

78
77

79

83

81

80

93

94

95

92

91
47

37

38 48

46

39

36

35

20

21

22

32

33

34

49
50

51
52

53

54

75

76

45
41

40

42

43

44

60
59

58

57

56

55

74

73

72

71

70

69

68

67

66

65

64

63

62

61

23

31

30

29
24

25
28

26

27

C/A
No. 1

C/A
No. 1

C/A
No. 1

C/A
No. 2

C/A
No. 5

C/A
No. 3

C/A
No. 5

C/A
No. 6

C/A
No. 7

Site

ChurchStreet

Medlen Pkwy CONWAY TOWNSHIP,
HORRY COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

PREPARED FOR
REALSTAR DEVELOPMENT GROUP

KINGSTON TRACT
SINGLE FAMILY SUBDIVISION

2. Plat Named "2 Tracts of Land in Conway Township" dated May
20th 1998 by Coastal Land Surveyors, Inc. and recorded in Plat
Book 156, Page 223 at the Horry County Register of Deeds.

3. Map of "11.6 Acres of Land in Conway Township" dated April 17th
1996 by Coastal Land Surveyors, Inc. and recorded in Plat Book
141, Page 169 at the Horry County Register of Deeds.

Carse
ns Fe

rry 
Dr.

Im
perial Street

Gold Crest Drive

Crown Road

Philip Street

PIN: 326-00-00-0048
Current Owner

Beverly Homes, LLC
D.B. 4263, Pg. 613

PIN: 325-00-00-0010
TMS: 122-00-04-002

Current Owner
Horry Electric Cooperative Inc.

D.B. 2611, Pg. 0189
(Horry County)

Pin: 325-00-00-0011
Current Owner

Burroughs & Chapin
Company, Inc.

(Horry County)

PIN: 338-01-01-0001
Current Owner

Conway Christian School
(Horry County)

PIN: 337-04-02-0076
Current Owner

Rivertown Row Inc.

Lot 76
PIN: 337-04-02-0063

Current Owner
Jean N. Gillian

D.B. 4299, Pg. 1513

PIN: 338-00-00-0003
TMS: 122-00-04-010

Current Owner
Honest Effort, LLC

PIN: 338-01-04-0005
Current Owner

Gerald Land Holdings, LLC
D.B. 4575, Pg. 192

PIN: 338-01-04-0001
TMS: 122-00-04-034

Current Owner
D D & D Corporation

D.B. 4575, Pg. 192
(Horry County)

Tract B
PIN: 338-00-00-0034

Current Owner
Kingston Presbyterian

Church, Inc.

Me
dle

n 
Pa

rk
wa

y

(V
ar

iab
le 

W
idt

h 
Pu

bli
c R

/W
)

Philip Street
Philip Stree

t

Ph
ilip

 S
tre

et

Ca
rs

en
s 

Fe
rry

 D
r.

13. All Wetlands depicted per Army Corps of Engineers Delineation
Concurrence SAC-2021-00969 and Wetland Delineation map by
Southern Palmetto Environmental dated September 22, 2021.

14. Future pond geometry and eras predicted are approximate and
shown for reference.

15. Landscape buffers shown hereon are for the preservation of the
existing perimeter vegetative buffering. These buffers are
appurtenant to the property and shall be administered by the POA"

4. ALTA / NSPS of "Land Title Survey of Several Tracts Located in
Conway Township", Prepared for Realstar Development Group,
LLC, by Spartina Land Surveying, Dated May 4th 2022

C/A
No. 4

Woodcliffe Drive

Ellouise 
Drive

16. Drainage easements depicted are intended to be centered on final
drainage installation location.

17. Utility easements depicted are intended to be centered on final
utility installation location.

18. 10' utility easement intended to front all lots.

19. Wetland buffers depicted are variable in nature, 35' in average and 10'
Minimum. The variable width wetland buffers shown hereon are for the
preservation of the existing wetlands. These buffers are appurtenant to the
property and shall be administered by the POA"

20. Improvements to property shown for reference only.

CITY OF CONWAY NOTES:

1. The roads and drainage within this subdivision are intended to be public and
dedicated to the City of Conway, unless otherwise noted on the plat.

2. All activities, including activities by individual lot owners or lease holder, or
contractors, will be carried out in accordance with the approved Stormwater
Management and Sediment Control plan for the subdivision.

3. All drainage easement are to be cleared and remain free and clear
of all structures and other obstructions.

4. HOA/POA documents or restrictive covenants and easements for the development
shown hereon were recorded in Deed Book ______, Page______on _____(date) in
the Office of the Register of Deeds for Horry County

5. No protected trees as defined in Section 3-4-8 of the Tree Preservation Ordinance
shall be removed without the written approval of the city arborist and the issuance of
a tree removal permit by the City of Conway

6. The landscape buffers depicted hereon are being dedicated for the
preservation, maintenance, repair and replacement of required landscape
materials and the associated irrigation systems

7. The maintenance and/or replacement of required street trees within the public
rights-of-way dedicated hereon, shall the responsibility of the HOA

8. All lots dedicated hereon as Open Space and/or Common Area shall remain
as such in perpetuity.

CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL FOR PUBLIC
WATER AND SEWER SYSTEMS
We City of Conway certify that the water supply and/or sewer
disposal system(s) installed or proposed for installation, fully meet our
requirements.

Name Signed Date

CERTIFICATE OF OWNERSHIP AND DEDICATION
The undersigned hereby acknowledge that I am (we are) the owner(s)
of the property shown and described hereon and that I(we) hereby
adopt this plat with my(our) free consent and that I(we) hereby
dedicate all items as specifically shown or indicated on said plat.

Name Signed Date

Pond 1

Pond 2

Pond 3

Pond 4

Pond 5

Pond 6

Pond 7

Agent: Kingston Presbyterian Church Inc.Agent: City of Conway

NO. 40337

PS

77

https://drgpllc.com/
https://drgpllc.com/
https://drgpllc.com/
https://drgpllc.com/
https://drgpllc.com/
https://drgpllc.com/
https://drgpllc.com/
bgerald
Oval
Please revise street name suffix in the table citing the linear feet of roadways, on sheet 1 of 5 of the single-family plats, to “Imperial Court”

bgerald
Polygon
Please update the ownership information (Note: 2 on SF plat & Notes: 1 & 2 on TH plat) and last property transfer information (Note: 9 on both plats)… 338-00-00-0001, 338-00-00-0034 & 337-05-02-0005 were all sold to: Realstar Development Group LLC, via: DB 4759-3091

bgerald
Polygon
Please update the ownership information (Note: 2 on SF plat & Notes: 1 & 2 on TH plat) and last property transfer information (Note: 9 on both plats)… 338-00-00-0001, 338-00-00-0034 & 337-05-02-0005 were all sold to: Realstar Development Group LLC, via: DB 4759-3091



DATE:  FEBRUARY 19, 2024 
ITEM:  IX.B. 

 
                                                                                                          
ISSUE: 
 
Authorization of application for the 2024 Assistance to Firefighters Grant. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Staff is requesting permission to submit an application to FEMA for an Assistance to Firefighters 
grant in the amount of $198,000 to add an apparatus exhaust removal system to all three fire 
stations.  This would finance the purchase of the system for each station and the adapters for each 
of the fire apparatus.             
 
The primary objective of our grant proposal is to safeguard the health and well-being of our 
dedicated firefighters. Exposure to hazardous materials present in vehicle exhaust emissions poses 
a significant risk to their respiratory and overall health. By implementing an advanced fire station 
exhaust system, we aim to create a safer and healthier environment for our firefighting personnel.  
The proposed project aligns with and supports compliance with occupational safety standards 
established by regulatory bodies such as the Occupational Safety and Health Administration 
(OSHA). Adhering to these standards is crucial in ensuring a work environment that minimizes 
potential health risks for our firefighters. The installation of an effective exhaust ventilation system 
is essential in minimizing the inhalation of harmful particulates found in vehicle exhaust. 
Respiratory issues, including asthma and other pulmonary conditions, are prevalent among 
firefighters due to prolonged exposure to these pollutants. Our initiative seeks to significantly 
reduce the incidence of such health concerns among our firefighting personnel. 
  
An efficient exhaust system will streamline the process of vehicle exit and entry from the fire 
station, saving valuable response time during emergency situations. By reducing the time it takes 
for vehicles to exit the station without compromising safety, we can enhance the overall efficiency 
of emergency response operations. 
 
The City of Conway will be required to provide a 10% match ($19,800) if the grant is awarded.  
The exact amount of the required match is subject to change depending on actual cost of equipment 
at the time of purchase.  This will be covered through our operational budget. 
 
This grant may not be awarded until next fiscal year and a one-year time frame will be allowed to 
complete the project. Therefore, the purchase may be pushed back into the FY 2024-25 budget 
year. There is no cost to apply and the City pays nothing if a grant is not awarded.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Authorize submission of the grant application for this project. 

78



 

 

Budgetary Estimate 
 
 
DATE:    February 8, 2024 
 
PROPOSAL FOR:  Conway Fire Department 
    229 Main Street 
    Conway, SC 29526 
 
ATTENTION:  Deputy Chief Jason Perzan  
     
PROJECT SCOPE: Provide and Install a fully automatic MagneGrip® Diesel Exhaust Extraction System 

for removal of apparatus exhaust emissions from start up to door threshold.  
 
 
EQUIPMENT, MATERIAL AND LABOR PRICE: 
 
Station #1: 
Five Drop MagneGrip® Source Capture System  
Package Includes: 

• (5) SFTMPRO-301  30’ Sliding Flex Hose Track MagneGrip® PRO  
• (1) CF363-5   MagneGrip® Exhaust Fan 5HP-3PH rated at 3300 CFM at 6” SP 
• (1) 500179-08  Wireless Auto-Start Control Panel 5HP/208-230V/3PH 
• (1) 500157-12  12” Up-blast Back Draft Damper Type Rain Cap  

PRICE……………………………………………………………………………………………………$72,341.00 
 
Station #2: 
Four Drop MagneGrip® Source Capture System  
Package Includes: 

• (4) SFTMPRO-301  30’ Sliding Flex Hose Track MagneGrip® PRO  
• (1) CF363-5   MagneGrip® Exhaust Fan 5HP-3PH rated at 3300 CFM at 6” SP 
• (1) 500179-08  Wireless Auto-Start Control Panel 5HP/208-230V/3PH 
• (1) 500157-12  12” Up-blast Back Draft Damper Type Rain Cap  

PRICE……………………………………………………………………………………………………$62,831.00 
 
 
Station #3: 
Four Drop MagneGrip® Source Capture System  
Package Includes: 

• (4) SFTMPRO-301  30’ Sliding Flex Hose Track MagneGrip® PRO  
• (1) CF363-5   MagneGrip® Exhaust Fan 5HP-3PH rated at 3300 CFM at 6” SP 
• (1) 500179-08  Wireless Auto-Start Control Panel 5HP/208-230V/3PH 
• (1) 500157-12  12” Up-blast Back Draft Damper Type Rain Cap  

PRICE……………………………………………………………………………………………………$62,831.00 
 
 
 

79



 

 

 
• Each Hose Assembly includes a 5” diameter high-temp upper hose section, a 1050-degree extreme 

high-temp 2’ lower hose section with handle, a nozzle that attaches to the tailpipe adapter to contain 
100% of exhaust emissions while providing ambient air to reduce exhaust temperatures, a tailpipe 
adapter assembly that provides easy connection and cool air induction. 

• UL/CUL Wireless Auto-Start Control Panel with NEMA 4X enclosure to provide auto start/stop operation 
with adjustable timer, manual override switch, and wireless capability. 

• Electrical wiring from available supply to control panel and exhaust fan, a safety disconnect for fan motor. 
Subpanels are excluded, if required, and any modifications required to bring service to code are excluded.  

• Each Hose Assembly is provided with a transmitter and pressure sensor for automatic system. 
• Tailpipe Modifications as required but limited to vehicle tailpipes from the muffler out. Rusted or 

Damaged Tailpipes are the responsibility of the Fire Department. 
• Class 2 Spiral Duct, Fittings, and Hangers 
• Adjustable Telescopic Support Legs to hang rail or track systems 
• If Required, Wall Penetration for Fan Discharge (see Terms) 
• Shipping to Job Site 
• Labor & Material to Install Systems 
• Start up and Training 
• Equipment is 100% American Made by an ISO9001-2015 Company 
• Women’s Business Enterprise (WBE) Certified  
• Women’s Owned Small Business (WOSB) Certified  

 

TOTAL PRICE………………………………………………………………………………………$198,003.00 
 
TERMS: 

 
• This budgetary proposal is for the purpose of budgetary estimating or appropriating funds and should not be 

construed or used as a price for bid or contract.  
• One MagneGrip® Tailpipe Adapter and installation is included with each hose drop assembly. All vehicles that 

require Tailpipe Adapters must be made available to MagneGrip technicians at the time of system installation. 
Additional adapters upon request. Call for pricing.  

• MagneGrip provides wall penetration only for exhaust duct, if required. Roof penetrations, flashing, curbing and 
sealing will be at the customer’s expense. 

• Pricing includes standard permits and business licensing fees, if required. Price does not include any state, sales, 
or special taxes, engineered stamped drawings or services, seismic engineering, or electrical/structural load 
calculations. 

• Electrical subpanels and modifications required to bring service to code are excluded if required unless otherwise 
indicated in the proposal. 

• Projects are invoiced per station upon shipment of equipment. Payment is due upon completion of the project. 
 
SUBMITTED BY:      

      
David Sapp 
Southeast Regional Sales Manager      
––––––––––––––––––––––– 
Cell: 904-570-1337 
Email: Dsapp@magnegrip.com 

80

mailto:Dsapp@magnegrip.com


 DATE:  FEBRUARY 19, 2024 
 ITEM:  IX.C. 
 
 
ISSUE: 
 
Request from A Father’s Place for a Special Event for Running with my Peeps 5K Run/Walk on 
April 13, 2024 from 7:00 a.m. to 10:30 p.m. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
A Father’s Place wants host a 5k run/walk for fundraising and to promote a healthy, fun outdoor 
family friendly event.    
 
Set-up and late registration will begin at 7:00 a.m. The race will start at 8:00 a.m. Awards and 
festivities will begin after the race at 9:30 a.m. Breakdown and clean-up will be completed by 
10:30 a.m. 
 
The race will start on Laurel Street at parking lot, go down Elm Street on the sidewalk (Elm Street 
will remain open), run the length of the Riverwalk down, turn right onto Kingston to Highway 905 
and back up Kingston Street, turn right onto Laurel Street, left at Ninth Avenue and back down 
Laurel Street to end at the parking lot.  
 
There will be golf carts, speakers, and music.  
 
A Father’s Place anticipates approximately 250 people and 5 vendors. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve the special event permit as presented. 

81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



 DATE:  FEBRUARY 19, 2024 
 ITEM:  IX.D.  
 
 
ISSUE: 
 
Request from First Baptist Church to host Easter Jam on March 24, 2024 from 10:00 a.m. to 12:00 
Noon 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
First Baptist Church will host a community event with an Easter egg hunt. 
 
First Baptist is requesting road closure of Sixth Avenue between Elm Street and Beaty Street. 
 
Approximately 200 participants are anticipated. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve the special event permit as presented. 

96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108


	1.City of Conway Council Meeting Agenda 2.19.2024
	2.3310 betty street
	!2nd Reading_CC Issue Paper - 3310 Betty Street (R-1 annexation)
	ZOOMED IN AERIAL MAP FOR 3310 BETTY ST
	ZOOMED OUT AERIAL MAP FOR 3310 BETTY ST
	ZONING MAP FOR 3310 BETTY ST
	FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR 3310 BETTY ST
	FLOOD ZONE MAP FOR 3310 BETTY ST
	Restrictive Covenant
	APP_3310 Betty Street_P24-0017 (1.19.24)

	3.City Council Meeting Minutes 2.5.2024
	4.1.Issue Paper_Employee of the month
	4.issue paper Conway Downtown Alive
	5.KCB Special Presentation KAB Innovative Award 2.19.2024
	6.501 and mill pond flum amendment
	!1st rdg. & Public Hearing - FLUM amendment for PIN 338-10-01-0015
	FLUM maps combined
	SPLIT ZONE MAP FOR MILL POND AND HWY 501 UPDATED 2-1-2024

	7.1904 rose hill dr flum amendment
	!1st rdg. & Public Hearing 1904 Rose Hill Dr - FLUM amendment (2.19.24 mtg.)
	FLUM Resolution - Signed (2.1.24)
	FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR 1904 ROSE HILL DR
	PROPOSED CHANGE IN FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR 1904 ROSE HILL DR

	8.1904 rose hill rezoning
	!1st rdg. - 1904 Rose Hill Dr. (rez) - 2.19.24
	ZOOMED IN AERIAL MAP FOR 1904 ROSE HILL DR
	ZOOMED OUT AERIAL MAP FOR 1904 ROSE HILL DR
	ZONING MAP FOR 1904 ROSE HILL DR
	FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR 1904 ROSE HILL DR
	FLOOD ZONE MAP FOR 1904 ROSE HILL DR
	APP_1904 Rose Hill Drive_P24-0005 (1.5.23)

	9.gardner lacy and 501 annexation
	!1st rdg. - Gardner Lacy & Hwy 501 (anx & rez) (2.19.24)
	ZOOMED IN AERIAL MAP FOR FOUNDERS NATIONAL GOLF LLC REV 1-12-2024
	ZOOMED OUT AERIAL MAP FOR FOUNDERS NATIONAL GOLF LLC
	ZONING MAP FOR FOUNDERS NATIONAL GOLF LLC
	FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR FOUNDERS NATIONAL GOLF LLC
	FLOOD ZONE MAP FOR FOUNDERS NATIONAL GOLF LLC
	APP_Founders National Golf, LLC_P24-0007 (1.8.24)

	10.3648 ole alston ave annexation
	!1st Rdg_CC Issue Paper -3648 Ole Alston Ave (R-1 annexation)
	ZOOMED IN AERIAL MAP FOR OLE ALSTON AVE
	ZOOMED OUT AERIAL MAP FOR OLE ALSTON AVE
	ZONING MAP FOR OLE ALSTON AVE
	FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR OLE ALSTON AVE
	FLOOD ZONE MAP FOR OLE ALSTON AVE
	APP_Ole Alston Ave_P24-0026 (1.31.24)

	11.Kings Court Name Approval
	CC Issue Paper - Kings Court (Subdivision Name) 2.19.24
	Kings Court - overall site plan

	12.2024 assistance to firefighters grant
	AFG Issue Paper Exhaust System 2.7.2024
	Staff is requesting permission to submit an application to FEMA for an Assistance to Firefighters grant in the amount of $198,000 to add an apparatus exhaust removal system to all three fire stations.  This would finance the purchase of the system for...

	Conway FD SC AFG 23-24 Budgetary 

	13.running with my peeps
	Running with my Peeps 5k Run Walk
	Map
	application

	14.first baptist church easter jam
	Firrst Baptist Easter Jam
	first baptist easter jam application




